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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The registered office of the Company is located at
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12,
Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the
following activities:

(i) the design, manufacture and installation of
fabricated aluminium and stainless steel products
for buildings, such as curtain wall and cladding
systems, windows, doors, skylights and other
related products;

(i) the generation and sale of electric and steam
power; and

(iii) the share of profit from the development,
manufacture and distribution of EC120
helicopters.

In the opinion of the directors, CATIC, a state-owned
enterprise in the PRC, is the Company’s ultimate holding
company, which is owned as to 50% by AVIC | and
50% by AVIC Il, both of which are directly under the
regulation of the State Council of the PRC.
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Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which also include Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
("Ints")) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain buildings, investment
property, plant and equipment and financial assets,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2005. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries.
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2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED 2.2 ¥7] K183 ZHKFRSZ

HKFRSs =%

The following new and revised HKFRSs affect the Group LATS #75] A& 5] 2 HKFRS &2 & 2N &

and are adopted for the first time for the current year's EWBEAFERBEHRER 5 RNFE

financial statements: A

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements B 75 3R 3% 19 51 3R

HKAS 2 Inventories A=

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements REMER

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting SETBUR C EEMAFTEEMES
Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date HEBIEER

HKAS 11 Construction Contracts BEEH

HKAS 12 Income Taxes CIEET

HKAS 14 Segment Reporting D2

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment M - BEMEE

HKAS 17 Leases HE

HKAS 18 Revenue WA

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits & 8 @7

HKAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and BB g st AR
Disclosure of Government Assistance BT % B B % B8

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates [EXRZB)H) T &

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs BExE R

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures A B 5 B R

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements & £t & B35 81 ¥ 7R X

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates REE&E R RRE

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation <@k T B @ 5% %l 2k

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share BRRAF

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets BERE

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities i B EENNEEE
and Contingent Assets

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets B AE

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and SRITA : BRMTE
Measurement

HKAS 39 Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial MBEERMBBED

Amendment Assets and Financial Liabilities BERERER
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment VA B% 2N (8 1+
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations S

HK(SIC)-Int 21

HK-Int 4

Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued
Non-depreciable Assets

Leases — Determination of the Length of
Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong Land
Leases
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2.2

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 14, 16, 18,
19, 20, 23, 27, 28, 33, 37, 38, HKFRS 2, HK(SIC)-Int
21 and HK-Int 4 has had no material impact on the
accounting policies of the Group and the methods of
computation in the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements.

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority
interests on the face of the consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and other disclosures. In addition,
in prior periods, the Group’s share of tax attributable
to associates was presented as a component of the
Group’s total tax charge/(credit) in the consolidated
income statement. Upon the adoption of HKAS 1, the
Group's share of the post-acquisition results of
associates is presented net of the Group's share of tax
attributable to associates.

HKAS 21 had no material impact on the Group. As
permitted by the transitional provisions of HKAS 21,
goodwill arising in a business combination prior to 1
January 2005 and fair value adjustments arising on
that acquisition are deemed to be in the currency of
the Company. In respect of acquisitions subsequent to
1 January 2005, any goodwill arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments
to the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and are translated at the closing rate in accordance
with HKAS 21.

HKAS 24 has expanded the definition of related parties
and affected the Group's related party disclosures.
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2.2

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

The impact of adopting the other HKFRSs is summarised
as follows:

(a) HKAS 17 - Leases

In prior years leasehold land and buildings held
for own use were stated at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the Group’s
leasehold interest in land and buildings is
separated into leasehold land and leasehold
buildings. The Group’s leasehold land is classified
as an operating lease, because the title of the
land is not expected to pass to the Group by
the end of the lease term, and is reclassified
from property, plant and equipment to prepaid
land premiums/land lease payments, while
leasehold buildings continue to be classified as
part of property, plant and equipment. Prepaid
land premiums for land lease payments under
operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis
over the lease term. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings
as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

This change in accounting policy has had no
effect on the consolidated income statement and
retained profits. The comparative amounts on
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2004 have been restated to reflect
the reclassification of the leasehold land.
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Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial
Instruments

Equity securities and club debentures

In prior years, the Group classified its
investments in equity securities, which were held
for non-trading purposes, as long term
investments. In addition, the Group classified
its club debentures, which were held for non-
trading purposes, as other non-current assets.
These

debentures were stated at cost less impairment

long term investments and club
losses, on an individual basis. Upon the adoption
of HKAS 39, these long term investments and
club debentures held by the Group at 1 January
2005 with respective aggregate amount of
HK$16,820,478 and HK$960,000, are
designated as available-for-sale investments
under the transitional provisions of HKAS 39
and accordingly are stated at fair value, with
gains or losses being recognised as a separate
component of equity until subsequent
derecognition or impairment.

This change in accounting policy has had no
effect on the consolidated income statement and
retained profits. The comparative amounts in
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2004 have been restated to reflect
the
investments.

reclassification of available-for-sale

MBHRRHE -==

FE+=HA=+—H

2.2 %ﬁ*‘T&ﬂ“‘TZHKFRSZ

(b)

2 (Z

HKAS 32 F HKAS 39— &
T A

R &5 R & A& 5
RATEE  AEEBEETE
EEBERAZRHRAESFNIR
BNHERARBIRE  WHEE
HTREEEARMNEME
FoBEABEMERBEE -
ZERHKEREMESFIZ
18 Bl % B 2 % DA K 25T {7
BB B ER o 2XA T HKAS
3927 1% » HRIEHKAS 397 &Y
BEHGR  AEER=T
TRE—A—BAEBEFEZR
&% 5 516,820,4787%
7L % 960,000/8 7T 2 7% & & B
RERSHERET A H
HEMKZRE YEMZRER

FEINE  AFEEHEE

WESERERN —EEE
RIAHRK B D R FER - EEH
BN T HRIME o

LB BENEEHESH
HERMBEGBANRELE -
R-ZBTEFE+-_HA=+—
BNGFAaEEABRNOLER
HFEEY - ARBRE A H
HEMNKRENEHFHE -



CATIC International Holdings Limited = B fi 2= £ if EIBR 2 R B R 2 7]

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

MBHRRWE -==

AE+=-HA=+—H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED 2.2 %ﬁ*‘T&ﬂ“‘TZHKFRSZ
HKFRSs (continued) S (E
()  HKFRS 2 - Share-based Payment (¢) HKFRS 2— LR 2 {8 15

In prior years, no recognition and measurement
of share-based payment transactions in which
employees (including directors) were granted
share options over shares in the Company were
required until such options were exercised by
employees, at which time the share capital and
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share premium were credited with the proceeds A B WHKIE -

received.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 2, when employees RERMHKFRS 2218 » MBS
(including directors) render services as (“?E%%) 12 AR 7% 1E A BX
consideration for equity instruments (“equity- JFRATENRE ([RALE
settled transactions”), the cost of the equity- EQ%J) A B R BT

settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at
which the instruments are granted.

The main impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is
the recognition of the cost of these transactions
and a corresponding entry to equity for
employee share options. The revised accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions is
described in more detail in note 2.5 “Summary
of significant accounting policies” below.

The Group has adopted the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 2 under which the new
measurement policies have not been applied to
(i) options granted to employees on or before 7
November 2002; and (ii) options granted to
employees after 7 November 2002 but which
had vested before 1 January 2005.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (continued)

(c)

(d)

HKFRS 2 - Share-based Payment (continued)

As the Group did not have any employee share
options which were granted during the period
from 7 November 2002 to 31 December 2004
but had not yet vested as at 1 January 2005,
the adoption of HKFRS 2 has had no impact on
the retained profits as at 31 December 2003
and at 31 December 2004. No options were
granted by the Group during the year.

HKFRS 3 — Business Combinations and
HKAS 36 — Impairment of Assets

In prior years, negative goodwill arising on
acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001 was credited
to the consolidated capital reserve in the year
of acquisition and was not recognised in the
income statement until disposal or impairment
of the acquired business.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2001 was capitalised and amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life and was subject to impairment testing when
there was any indication of impairment. Negative
goodwill was carried in the balance sheet and
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a systematic basis over the
remaining average useful life of the acquired
depreciable/amortisable assets.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (continued)

(d)

HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations and
HKAS 36 - Impairment of Assets (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36 has
resulted in the Group’s ceasing annual
amortisation and commencing testing for
impairment at the cash-generating unit level
annually (or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired). Any impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
(previously referred to as negative goodwill),
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement.

The transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 have
required the Group to eliminate at 1 January

(d)
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2005 the carrying amounts of accumulated HEEN R HENREE
amortisation with a corresponding entry to the BEEMENKRAFERE - I
cost of goodwill and to derecognise the carrying BRIIBREEENKREE

amounts of negative goodwill (including that
remaining in consolidated capital reserve) against
consolidated retained profits.

The effects of the above changes are
summarised in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. In accordance with the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3, comparative amounts
have not been restated.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

(e)

HK(SIC)-Int 21 - Income Taxes-Recovery of
Revalued Non-depreciable Assets

In prior periods, deferred tax arising on the
revaluation of an investment property was
recognised based on the tax rate that would be
applicable upon the sale of the investment
property.

Upon the adoption of HK(SIC)-Int 21, deferred
tax arising on the revaluation of the Group's
investment property is determined depending on
whether the property will be recovered through
use or through sale. The Group has determined
that its investment property will be recovered
through use, and accordingly the profits tax rate
has been applied to the calculation of deferred
tax.

The adoption of HK(SIC)-Int 21 has had no effect
to the deferred tax position of the Group.
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements. Unless

otherwise stated, these HKFRSs are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006:

HKAS 1 Amendment
HKAS 19 Amendment

HKAS 21 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment
HKAS 39 Amendment
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4
Amendments
HKFRS 1 & 6
Amendments

HKFRS 6

HKFRS 7

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4

HK(IFRIC)-Int 5

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7

Capital Disclosures

Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group
Plans and Disclosures

The Effects of Changes in Foreign

Exchange Rates — Net Investment in

a Foreign Operation
Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions
The Fair Value Option
Financial Guarantee Contracts

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards and
Exploration for and Evaluation of

Mineral Resources

Exploration for and Evaluation of
Mineral Resources

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Determining whether an Arrangement

contains a Lease
Rights to Interests arising from

Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
Liabilities arising from Participating in a
Specific Market — Waste Electrical

and Electronic Equipment

Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting

in Hyperinflationary Economies
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET 23 CDHEFEEKRERZ

EFFECTIVE HKFRSs (continued)

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The
revised standard will affect the disclosures about
qualitative information about the Group’s objective,
policies and processes for managing capital;
guantitative data about what the Company regards as
capital; and compliance with any capital requirements
and the consequences of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 incorporates the disclosure requirements of
HKAS 32 relating to financial instruments. This HKFRS
shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2007.

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 4 regarding financial guarantee contracts,
financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently measured at the higher
of (i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS
37 and (ii) the amount initially recognised, less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18. The adoption of the
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 will result in
the recognition of a financial liability in the Company’s
balance sheet in respect of corporate guarantees given
by the Company in connection with banking facilities
granted to its subsidiaries.

The HKAS 19 Amendment, HKAS 21 Amendment,
HKAS 39 Amendment regarding cash flow hedge
accounting of forecast intragroup transactions, HKFRSs
1 and 6 Amendments, HKFRS 6, HK(IFRIC)-Int 5,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 do not apply to the
activities of the Group. HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 7 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 December 2005 and 1 March 2006,
respectively.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the
adoption of the pronouncements listed above will not
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements in the period of initial appllication.

HKFRSZ S/ €& (/&

HKAS 1 Amendment@ AR =& =
+tE&E—HA—Bz2ERBOFEER
o KIETEA K E T SIER
BE BEASEBEEEEARAME
B HREREFSFIHE=LER B
BARRRBEANE(LERE &
FEERERNBITER  ARE
AT ERERRER o

HKFRS 7#5ERRHKAS 32 » 3] T &
HemIAENBEZ R - ZE
HKFRSEAR ZTZT £ — H—H
R BFABRMNEERE -

RIEE BB RE K BIHKAS 39
Amendment 2 HKFRS 4 Amendment -
BEREHNEEATEER B
BIEATERSESE : ()MREHKAS
37 TE B BURR R (i) ¥ 2 HE BB Y B
8 R E(HE S )R IBEHKAS 181 R
WREEHE - RMAHKAS 39
Amendment &2 HKFRS 4 Amendment
HEBARR G E AR ZRITE
BEREZ ARIERARARARZE
ERREXRLBRRYBAR -

HKAS 19 Amendment * HKAS 21
Amendment * HKAS 39 Amendment
DEBEASERNRRIRARZHR
EMEBH MG EE o HKFRS 1
Amendment * HKFRS 6 Amendment *
HK(IFRIC)-Int 5 + HK(IFRIC)-Int 6%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 73 7~ i AR A 2R SR [ 4
JE B o HK(FRIC)-Int 6 &% HK(IFRIC)-
Int 79BN —_FEETRF—H—HK
ZIERZFEERF=A—Hzz&
i FEHREER -

BR EXXATLE SN - AR ETEERA
ERMINTEHARERERRMA
MR G RREXTMNENY
2= .



CATIC International Holdings Limited = B fi 2= £ if EIBR 2 R B R 2 7]

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

MBBRRME —z2s5t-a=+-5

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF 24 St BREENEE
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet (a) HHEFEEAEEBXRHNFE
At 1 January 2005 Effect of adopting
R-BZ2R5—-HA—-H Rneg g
HKAS 32* and
HKAS 39* -
HKAS 17* - Change in HKFRS 3* -
Prepaid land  classification Derecognition
Effect of new policies lease payments of investments of negative
(Increase/(decrease)) HKAS 17*— HKAS 32¢ & goodwill
FBRENTE AL HKAS 39* - HKFRS 3*— Total
(2, (D)) HEX RESENNE FTTFRILHE CEil
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Assets -3
Property, plant and mE - BEM
equipment B (7,778,368) - = (7,778,368)
Prepaid land premiums/  FAff iz
land lease payments T ER 7,332,360 = = 7,332,360
Long term investments ~ RHEE - (16,820,478) = (16,820,478)
Club debentures g% - (960,000) - (960,000)
Available-for-sale A £ i1 £ #)
investments k& = 17,780,478 = 17,780,478
Prepayments, deposits ~ TAfTHIE « &£
and other receivables N E e i BR X 446,008 - - 446,008

Liabilities/equity 88 #i

Capital reserve BERGEE - - (162,134) (162,134)

Retained profits B Al = = 162,134 162,134

@ Adjustments taken effect prospectively e ARR_TTRF—A
from 1 January 2005 —HREREX

# Adjustments/presentation taken effect # AE2HRBPER

retrospectively
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2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF 24 Bt BEBENETE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING (4

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet (a) HHEFEEAEEBXRHNFE
(continued) (&)
At 31 December 2005 Effect of adopting
RZEERF+-A=1+—-H R g

HKFRS 3 -

Discontinuing
of amortisation

of goodwill/
HKAS 32 and recognition
HKAS 39 - of negative
HKAS 17 - Change in goodwill
Prepaid land  classification as income
Effect of new policies lease payments of investments HKFRS 3—
(Increase/(decrease)) HKAS 17— HKAS 32 & KRItEB#
HBRNEE Bttt HKAS 39— BREHE Total
(%, (BD)) HER RESENNSE ERWRA &%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Assets EE
Property, plant and mE - BEM
equipment B (7,922,460) = = (7,922,460)
Prepaid land premiums/  FAfT T3,/
land lease payments THAER 28,578,268 - - 28,578,268
Goodwill B = = 2,382,281 2,382,281
Long term investments ~ RHIRE = (9,106,600) = (9,106,600)
Club debentures g% - (960,000) = (960,000)
Available-for-sale A £ i1 & #)
investments/long ®E/ R
term investments KE = 10,066,600 - 10,066,600
Deposit paid for a land ~ THFEREZ
use right ENES (21,615,384) = = (21,615,384)
Prepayments, deposits ~ TAfTFIE « &£
and other receivables N E At LB 3K 959,576 - - 959,576
Short term investments 2 iR 4 = (11,702,100) (11,702,100)
Available-for-sale o 11 £ Ay
investments RE = 11,702,100 = 11,702,100
2,382,281
Liabilities/equity BE #i
Capital reserve BAREE = = (162,134) (162,134)
Retained profits Bl = = 2,544,415 2,544,415

2,382,281
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2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Effect on the balances of equity at 1 January

2004 and at 1 January 2005

Effect of new policies

(&

/1B

(b)

)

24 B BRRBENE

H-_ZTENMFEF-A-BR=
ZEZRRE-A-HHERW

E/
2

Effect of adopting
HKFRS 3 -
Derecognition of
negative goodwill

(Increase/(decrease)) HHHKFRS 3 —
FRERNEZE FTFTHRIAEEHE
(&, CE2)) ZEE
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2004 RZZEZTME—-H—H =
At 1 January 2005 R—ZEER&F—H—H
Capital reserve BN (162,134)
Retained profits B 17 4 A 162,134
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2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(c) Effect on the consolidated income

statement for the year ended 31 December

2005 and 2004

24 BHBERENYE

(&

(c) H-ZTHEER_FTENF
TZA=+—BHHKEEFHE

RO E

Effect of adopting
Razgs

HKFRS 3 -
Discontinuing
of amortisation

of goodwill/

HKAS 1 - recognition
Share of post- of negative
tax profits and goodwill
losses of as income

associates HKFRS 3— £ It

Effect of new policies HKAS 1—- 21t BEEE %3 Total
FHENEE BENTRBEEE SREEANA &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Year ended 31 December 2005 HEZE-ZEZHF
+T=ZH=t+-8
tEE
Decrease in amortisation expenses % 5 & f i = 8,452,137 8,452,137
Decrease in share of profits and AEEE DA
losses of associates A (963,050) - (963,050)
Decrease in tax IR D 963,050 = 963,050
Total increase in profit T ma s = 8,452,137 8,452,137
Increase in basic earnings per BREXRF
share 1 - 0.23 centsfll 0.23 centsfll
Year ended 31 December 2004 HE-ZEENWF
+-ZA=+-H
tEE
Decrease in share of profits and ok o) NGk E = = =
losses of associates D - - -
Decrease in tax HERD - _ _
Total change in profit MEEgen - - -

Change in basic earnings per share

RERRMNEE

H
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 25 FESHBEERE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates, which was not
previously eliminated or recognised in the consolidated
reserves, is included as part of the Group’s interests in
associates. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

op- N
B B8 2 B TS AN 1 R B Bk 9 1
HUMBREERRNBEEDETN
pA/NCII

fY B~ Al RE R C U N e A B
ME B ARNRAZFBERA - X
RARI B R E 2 s T AR A E
R B A ART R (B B 4R 51 B o

BEQT
BERNRERBARSLARZESN D
KNS AXAKERBEBETIR
0% R BEERGIE - WA HEHE
LEBAFEZLE -

AREBO B E RRIKRBR 2 EE
NiFHEDHEREEMBERRES
-  AREZHE REE IR
BRaEMARARENEZEE
FER AR EEB IR AL
ERER - UELRERREREE
BRI BBRERREEZ
BE DEREAKEREE QR
ZEmmE - WERAIEFELZ
THRUSTBRRFEDFHE - AR
_ﬁ°



Annual Report 2005 — ZZ R F F 3§ . @

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates represents the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
asumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement
date is on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially
measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. In the case of
associates, goodwill is included in the carrying amount
thereof, rather than as a separately identified asset on
the consolidated balance sheet.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is so allocated:

o represents the lowest level within the Group at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes; and

o is not larger than a segment based on either
the Group’s primary or the Group’s secondary
reporting format determined in accordance with
HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”.

MEHRRMMET —e2ns+-p=+-58

25 FESFHHEME (&)

[

WENBARRBMERRMELZ
BENECRAHAAEALAKH
REE BPERBE T 27 &5
BE ABERKARBEZAFFE
ZERE -

4

EHHHE—_FFRF—HA—H
AR IETE L &

WEMELAZHEBRNEAEERE
TABERDEE  WHRERANE
PR - BRI A EREARE R
BitE - WEBERRELZEHE
AGFAHBREER - M EHFES
EREXRANEBISAHNEE -

BEZEREEFEFETRER
A RERLEZERBEENEDR
NEREEE A B AR ER EIRE
HAEITRERH -

SREAEME REXREHEE
ZEEBAWEEREDKERMA
ReEszHAMBE SR AEEZ
BeELETXRESELETA
Bl - MAREEAKENEBEE
FEERAENREEXLETHE
TR ZERDERE 2 ETH
FERE :

. REASERLEEER N
ERHEBEIREMVE &

o TRARIEHKAS 14 4B 2
WIMEBET Z2AEBREBHA
SEEANBEFEAZDLE -
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is
measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Goodwill previously eliminated against the
consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 30
Combinations” in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition

“Business

was eliminated against the consolidated retained profits
in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS
3, such goodwill remains eliminated against the
consolidated retained profits and is not recognised in
profit or loss when all or part of the business to which
the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired.

2.5

TESHBRBE (F)

BR (B)

HMEDREEFEEBZRSES
BrzEsrrl kB EBmmERE o a0
BeEAETCREELE TAR)
R E e B REER - RAR
RRERERE -

IEEENBRSELET(REESL
BLAR) m—akD - M ¥t B
NEERNE A EHEREE
ZWaEEER - BIEEFEE Y
LEMBCRAERREZEEZR
EEAR - FHBERAT REHEZHE
BRBRHEZEERDREERS
ELEBT 2B 2 HEEENE -

MEBENSNERARED -

R B W e 5k 2 B &

RZEZT —FEMSSAP 30[ % 4E
Grlan - WEEFTELEMNEE IR UK E
EFRGEBENNR - M
HKFRS 374 + B EZEAEBB 22 H
HEHEBETEIESORER K
ERZHERBACEcEL B TR
B ZABNALEGEEBFEF
WHIBR °
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Excess over the cost of business combinations
(applicable to business combinations for which
the agreement date is on or after 1 January
2005)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of the acquisition of
associates (previously referred to as negative goodwill),
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the
income statement.

The excess for the associates is included in the Group's
share of the associates’ profit or loss in the period in
which the investments are acquired.

Impairment of assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, construction contract assets, deferred
tax assets, financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

MEHRRMMET —e2ns+-p=+-58

25 FEEFBRBE (F)

BRCXAHREIZEHE(EAR
BHNBEME-_ZFTZTRF-A—H
ERON: ekt =N)

REBR YR E ARE B ATHK
BEAZAHMANEE AERIA
BEZATFFEBBRBRAZE
B(<ABRIEAEE])  EEHF
fd1& - B FIR & AR o

e NRBR EHEBREAKE
RKBZRE Z BREAMA D HEE

DR Z AR -

BEEBR

BELREBEDR  INEFFR
BE(FE  ZEEMNEE  RIEM
REE  UHEE REVWERD
BERIN ETRERRE - EAMGE
ZEBEZAWEEE - BEZAK
EHBUNZEEXREELETLZ
EREERAFEREERARE
ZEREBERE  WAMEREEE
T BREZEEMELEZRER
ERATBINEMEEREEMR
PREAZBRERA - BIE A Y@ 8
BRARARZEEMBZREENE
5T o

HEBREREERAEBARA
YEl HEEER - £ AERER
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BEEE -
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Excess over the cost of business combinations
(applicable to business combinations for which
the agreement date is on or after 1 January
2005) (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, however not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has
joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

25 FEEFBRBE (F)

BRCXAHREIZEHE(EAR
BHNBEME-_ZFTZTRF-A—H
FUBRZEEEH) (B)

BEGERYAELFG  UEE
ELEPRBTINBEFEDER
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A] e [3 SRR 2 T 3R 2 B R
@ - MR E R 2 BREENEERR
AR B L% B E M RRE
B8 2 BRE A 2 B (IR ERIIT &
SEESH)  REBRZBERRNES D
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 25 FESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d); or

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment
property and construction in progress, are stated at
cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of an item of property, plant and equipment and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset or as a replacement.

BEAL (&)
() AEALR@I(BEMEE
MALTHERBE

(f) BBAALARXB(d)Sk(e)EPT
U e =GN el =l - 1 -
B HKEEGREEEAY
EIEAEEARERNE
B8 3L

(99 BFRAALAREEXEBERA
S B E/\j:E’JEHf £

BB Mz MR IER

?é@?ﬂ;ﬂriﬂﬁ’] mA e

l!

—

M- - BMENRBERTE
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TN THiR RE Sk b B R EHT
EREMRESEEAR - W% K
BHREZBEBEZKABREAERBE
B KA & 2= BUEEM R K tth
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the property, plant and equipment
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income
statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income statement to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the property, plant and
equipment revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as
a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the lease terms

Leasehold 4 years
improvements

Plant and machinery 5 years

Generation plant and 15 years
related structure

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 4 years

Tools and moulds 4 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

25 FEEFBRBE (F)
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment which are in their acquisition phase and is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. The acquisition phase of an asset includes
the period when the asset is under construction,
installation and testing. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction together with borrowing costs incurred
during the asset acquisition period that theoretically
could have been avoided if expenditure for the asset
had not been made. The capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are
completed. Construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when it is completed and ready for its
intended use, notwithstanding any delays in the issue
of the relevant commissioning certificates by the
appropriate authorities.

MEHRRMMET —e2ns+-p=+-58
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased
asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum
lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums/land lease payments under
operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2004:

The Group classified its investments, other than
subsidiaries and associates entities, as long term
investments.

Long term investments

Long term investments are non-trading investments in
unlisted securities and club debentures intended to be
held on a long term basis. The investments are stated
at cost less any impairment losses, on an individual
investment basis.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2005:

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as either financial assets at fair value through profit or
|loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale
financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs. The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets after initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation
at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
the date that
the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way

are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,

purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2005:
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-
derivative financial assets, including unlisted securities
and financial asset under Project EC120 as set out in
note 19 to the financial statements, that are designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the
other two categories. After initial recognition available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with
gains or losses being recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is determined to
be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement.

When the fair value of unlisted securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2005:
(continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded
in organised financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of
business on the balance sheet date. For investments
where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference
to the current market value of another instrument,
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the
year ended 31 December 2005)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the
year ended 31 December 2005) (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, and individually or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is
included in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and that group is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal
date.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the
year ended 31 December 2005) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the profit or loss, is transferred from
equity to the income statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of
the instrument can be objectively related to an event,
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 December 2005)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

o the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
or
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to
the year ended 31 December 2005) (continued)

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a
written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group
may repurchase, except that in the case of a written
put option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is
limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred
asset and the option exercise price.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the
fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (applicable
to the year ended 31 December 2005)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts of a long term nature are stated
at cost, plus any attributable profits, less any
foreseeable losses, and progress payments received and
receivable. Contract cost incurred comprises direct
material and labour costs, including subcontracted
costs, and overheads, including depreciation on plant
and machinery used in construction projects, and
capitalized interest on loans to finance specific projects.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract
customers.

Inventories

Inventories for construction contracts, comprising raw
materials and sub-materials, are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, after making due
allowance for any obsolete or slowmoving items. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the
underlying specific contracts in progress in which the
inventories will ultimately be used.

Inventories for the generation of electric and steam
power, comprising mainly coal and spare parts and
consumables for repairs and maintenance of machinery
and equipment, are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value, after making due allowance for
any obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost is determined
on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs is based on actual
interest incurred for the borrowings and ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense
in the income statement in the period in which they
are incurred.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Provisions for warranties granted by the Group are
recognised based on past experience of the level of
repairs, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 25 FESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or
a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to
the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken to profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currency of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the balance sheet date, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date and, its income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in a
separate component of the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequent recurring
cash flows of the overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the rendering of contracting works services,
based on the stage of completion of the
construction contracts, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Recognition of
income from construction contracts”;

(b) from the sale of electric and steam power, based
on actual consumption derived from the reading
of meters during the year;
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(©)

from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters, when the Group’s
right to receive its share of profit from Project
EC120 has been established (note 19);

from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

government grants, on a systematic basis over
the periods necessary to match the grant to the
costs that it is intended to compensate;

income from available-for-sale investment, on
an accrual basis;

income relating to the exclusive distributorship
of certain helicopter engines, on an accrual basis
pursuant to the agreement; and

income from the sale of coal residues, when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Recognition of income from construction
contracts

Profit on long term construction contracts is recognised
in the income statement on the percentage of
completion basis when the outcome of each contract
can be ascertained with reasonable certainty and when
a contract is at least 20% complete, by reference to
the total estimated cost of such contract, after making
due allowance for contingencies. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably
and when a contract is less than 20% complete,
revenue is recognised only to the extent that contract
costs incurred are recoverable. Provision is made for
any foreseeable losses as soon as such losses are
anticipated by management.

The Group makes claims for additional work done,
which may arise either under specific circumstances
provided for under the contracts, or due to variations
made to the contract specifications by its customers.
Where the amounts of such claims have not been
formally agreed at the balance sheet date, the likely
amount receivable as estimated by management, based
on all of the information available at the time, is
included in the contract value in determining the
estimated profit or foreseeable loss on the contract.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employee (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has
applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted
after 7 November 2002 that had not vested on 1
January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1
January 2005.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of
the termination of their employment. The Group is
liable to make such payments in the event that such a
termination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance. A contingent
liability is disclosed in respect of possible future long
service payments to employees, as a number of current
employees have achieved the required number of years
of service to the Group, at the balance sheet date, in
order to be eligible for long service payments under
the Employment Ordinance if their employment is
terminated in the circumstances specified. A provision
has not been recognised in respect of such possible
payments, as it is not considered probable that the
situation will result in a material future outflow of
resources from the Group.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme being effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution provident fund for
those employees who were eligible and had elected to
participate in the fund. This fund operated in a way
similar to the MPF Scheme, except that when an
employee left the fund prior to his/her interest in the
Group’'s employer contributions vesting fully, the
ongoing contributions payable by the Group were
reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. Upon the implementation of the MPF
Scheme with effect from 1 December 2000, the
provident fund was frozen and no further contributions
by the Group or the eligible employees were made
after that date. When eligible employees leave the
Group, they receive their entitlements pursuant to the
existing rules of this fund.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 25 TESHHEBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits
(continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property. The Group has determined
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of this property which is leased out on
operating leases.

Classification between investment property and
owner-occupied property

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not
be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Profitability and percentage of completion of
construction contracts

The Group determines the profitability of its
construction contracts based on the net income that
could be obtained after deducting its estimation of
the total costs of the contracts. The Group also
recognises its revenue from its contracts by the
percentage of completion of the contracts which is
measured by reference to the proportion of costs
incurred to date to the estimated total costs of the
relevant contract.

Judgement is also made on the contingency costs that
may arise from variation orders and claims as well as
the recovery of such costs from their customers.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amounts of goodwill on the acquisition
of a subsidiary and an associate at 31 December 2005
were HK$38,116,502 (2004: HK$38,116,502) and
HK$2,936,264 (2004: HK$2,936,264), respectively.
More details are given in note 16 to the financial
statements on the impairment testing of goodwill on
acquisition of a subsidiary.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred
tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred tax
assets based on the enacted or substantially enacted
tax rates and laws and best knowledge of profit
projections of the Group for coming years during which
the deferred tax assets are expected to be utilised.
Management will revise the assumptions and profit
projections by the balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of interests in associates

The Group determines whether interests in associates
is impaired on an annual basis. Valuation techniques
used was discounted future cash flows generated from
the continuous operations of the associates with
applying a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of financial asset under Project EC120

The Group determines whether the financial asset under
Project EC120 is impaired on an annual basis. Valuation
techniques used was discounted future cash flows
generated from the sale of EC120 covering 10-years
period with applying a suitable discount rate in order
to calcualte the present value of those cash flows.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary
segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary
details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the facade contracting works segment engages
in the design, manufacture and installation of
fabricated aluminium and stainless steel products
for buildings, such as curtain wall and cladding
systems, windows, doors, skylights and other
related products;

(b) the electric and steam power supply segment
engages in the generation and sale of electric
and steam power in the Linping industrial region
of Hangzhou in the PRC; and

(c) the aero-technology related business segment
engages in the share of profit from the
development, manufacture and distribution of
EC120 helicopters.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to
the segments based on the location of the assets.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. SEER (&
(continued)
(a) Business segments (a) %(¥28E
The following tables present revenue, profit and TRENAEEHEE-ZZ
certain asset, liability and expenditure AFER _TEZTNF+ -/ =
information for the Group’s business segments T-BILEFREZHEEBZ
for the years ended 31 December 2005 and W mARETEE - 8
2004. BERAXER -
Facade Electric and steam Aero-technology
contracting works power supply related business Consolidated
RENEEHIE ENREABE RERERBER &a
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
“2%RF CTTNF CEFFLE -TTNF -BRLE -TENF -BFRE CTIMAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr Tz  TEn  TEr  TEx Tz TExn  TErn
Segment revenue: ARG
Sales to external customers  HEFEENEE 450431 523464 154306 121,062 3,408 498 608,145 645,024
Other income A 196 32 10512 8,256 3120 3120 13828 11,408
Total gt 450,627 523,496 164,818 129,318 6,528 3,618 621,973 656,432
Seqment results PEXE 16,265 15383 20467 15,604 2,586 (775 39318 30212
Interest income, FEHA -
rental income and AelAR
unallocated gains AAERE 4612 11,386
Unallocated expenses AOEHER (11,563)  (14,062)
Finance costs BERY (6,186) (3,380
Share of profits and HMEBELF
losses of associates, B& B
net of tax NBEHE 4,380 (2,478)
Excess over cost of jepalE NG
acquisition of an RAZBHER
associate recognised as BIA
income 6,070 -
Amortisation of goodwill on ~ EBL A F
acquisition of an associate  FHEHH - (226)
Profit before tax B ATER 36,631 21452
Tax il (6,643)  (3,548)
Profit for the year REFE 29,988 17,904
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. S8EHR (&

(a) Business segments (continued) (a) (%28 (&)
Facade Electric and steam Aero-technology
contracting works power supply related business Consolidated
REMERGIR EOREAHE RERTRBRE &a

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
“EREF _TTRF CRREF _TINS CBRIF _TINF -RREF -TERF
HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
fér TET fEx TEr  FEx  TEr  TEr  Tén

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(251) (251) (E51)
Segment assets NEEE 406305 365551 299,657 274,045 55,688 56,066 761,650 695,662
Interests in associates UGl 3 - - - - 38,088 35500 38,088 35,500
Unallocated assets AAMEE 148,489 100,296
Total assets EERE 948,227 831458
Seqment liabilites 2BAR 266,956 229273 138,443 127,650 485 - 405,884 356,923
Unallocated liabilites FPREE 36,421 1,735
Total liabilities Rt 442,305 358,658
Other seqment; Hn g
information R
Capital expenditure BARY 6,748 2213 13983 27,183 - 420731 29400
Unallocated amounts KAORFE 883 56
2,614 29456
Depreciation nE 5,561 4499 10,380 9,487 1 - 15942 13986
Unallocated amounts *

ARHE 801 356
16,743 14,30

Surplus on revaluation of  #1% R

property, plant and NEBER

equipment ik - - 0 (88) - - 0 (88)
Impairment of financial BEEC120

asset under Project HBEE

EC120 HE - = - - 3,000 4,000 3,000 4,000
Amortisation of WERE

goodwill on RARk

acquisition of an HEBAF

associate and a HEEH

subsidiary - - - 2,382 - 226 - 2,608
Provision/ RUREK

(write-back of B/

provision) for (B

doubtful receivables &) 1,586 2,000 - (8563) - - 1586  (6,563)

Provision for warranty REEE 435 3,906 - - - - 435 3,906
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. ZEER (&)
(continued)
(b) Geographical segments (a) HEDE
The following table presents revenue and certain TREINAEBEEZE-_ZSTAFR
asset and expenditure information for the —FEMOFET_A=t—HLEHE
Group’s geographical segments for the years Z AR E 2 W kAT EERAE
ended 31 December 2005 and 2004. XER -
Hong Kong Mainland China  United States of America Consolidated
Ei RER L &a

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
“EREF -TTRF -SREF CTIMF CREIF CTIMF -RREF CTINS
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
féx  TEr TEx TEr  FEx  TEr  TEr  TAX

Seqment revenue: AElE
Sales to external customers  HEFEENEE 252,49 369497 355,896 275,527 - - 608,145 645,024
Other income EtlA 17 - 10,609 8,288 - - 10,626 8,288

Other segment information: ~ £ 2B EH :

Segment assets PEEE 495,732 371,662 448,992 459,796 3,503 - 948,227 831,458

Capital expenditure BARY 1,480 203 2013 27,183 - - 21614 29456
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. Uz~ Eig A R FH
GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents Was (RBEIARE B 2 & %58) JhF8 P
an appropriate proportion of contract revenue of the BITEHNIIRZERE REHEEE
construction contracts; the net invoiced value of electric NREARZEBEZEFE  UWEKREH
and steam power sold; and income from Project EC120 T COBERKHEEAK ZIES
for the development, manufacture and distribution of EC120Z HZ A -

helicopters.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. Wzm > Hitlt A R E
GAINS (continued) (7&
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and AEEKR - BB ARFES T
gains is as follows: W
2005 2004
—E2E2RF —EEMEF
Notes HKS$ HK$
[ i B BT
Revenue g
Value of contracting works BEHTEHNIRE
performed ZEE 450,431,243 523,463,760
Generation and sale of electric EEREBESN
and steam power MR 154,305,801 121,062,578
Share of profit from Project EC120 DEREFAE - BE
for the development, RSHEF K2
manufacture and distribution IEHECI202Z
of helicopters il 3,408,211 497,909
608,145,255 645,024,247
Other income H fth et A
Recovery of a receivable* Uz 0] & Uk 5% 78 40(3)(ii) - 8,563,370
Income accrued in respect of ETEAKSIZE
an exclusive distributorship BRDHEZ
of certain helicopter engines RN 22 3,119,995 3,120,000
Interest income B YA 1,911,470 1,312,249
Income from installation of TREREEZ
infrastructure for steam supply WA 3,039,191 2,992,570
Government grants** BBy & ** 2,072,896 3,605,934
Income from sale of coal residues HEREZ WA 5,321,175 1,242,709
Gross rental income He WAL 550,000 1,036,022
Others Hh 247,253 720,980
16,261,980 22,593,834
Gains bIpE
Gain on deemed disposal of HWEAHEHE QA
an associate ZAE - 115,816
Gain on disposal of available-for- HERHNENIRE
sale investments/long term R E 2 F)H
investments 27,828 84,842
27,828 200,658

16,289,808

22,794,492
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. s s HW A R R B
GAINS (continued) (&

*

* %

During the year ended 31 December 2004, an amount
of RMB9,077,171 (equivalent to HK$8,563,370) was
received from CATIC as settlement for the receivable
from BB CHEREGR AR ("BEEH"),

shareholder of Hangzhou Sealand, a 70%-owned

an ex-

subsidiary of the Company, due to Hangzhou Sealand
prior to the acquisition of interest in Hangzhou
Sealand by the Group in 2000 pursuant to a previous
commitment made by CATIC to Speed Profit, a
shareholder of the Company and the ex-shareholder
of Hangzhou Sealand which sold such 70% equity
interest in Hangzhou Sealand to the Group. The full
amount of the receivable was provided for at the
time when its equity interest in Hangzhou Sealand
was acquired by the Group. The amount recovered in
last year has been reflected in the consolidated income
statement in last year.

Various coal prices subsidies and government grants
relating to anti-pollution research activities in
Hangzhou, the PRC have been received from the
government authorities in Hangzhou. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
grants.

*

* %

REBE-ZTTZNF+=-_A=+—
HIEFER « EhMmia A a ik
29,077 17T T ARE ( HER
8,563,370/87T) ' tERIRE F Al
R B A A ] A B 1S FIE S 2 &
HEBAER _ZETFEIWREM
M B (AN R 85 70% A i 2 Bt
B2RR) 2N EEATRRE
BABMERERAR ([BEA
Btl) REBMMNEH 2 BUFRIE -
1S FI B AR A AL KA M
Z AR - E BN EEE 2 70%
RIEETFTAEER - ZERWKIE
B R 2N 55 B U BE A7 1 Vg B 2 AR e
RE2HEE RELAFREZRK
HEREFEHREMBERF
EE o

AU TR BT B P9 E BL B iR (B A% 4
B R AR BN 1T 2 IRIRFT ST
EBREZERFEDE  BH
I E B R HREMEER
TZBERRIAEH -
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after

6. PBRTATER

AEBEZBRBAEN SR, (G

charging/(crediting): A)ATIER :
2005 2004
g3 -3 —ETMEF
Notes HK$ HK$
ff BT BT
(Restated)
(E51)
Cost of contracting works: BHRITRMKAE
Cost of contracting works EHITENIREZ
performed DN 389,407,431 465,418,332
Provision for warranty RERE 29 435,200 3,906,000
389,842,631 469,324,332
Cost of electric and steam HEBNREALZ
power supply BN 138,378,486 113,494,417
528,221,117 582,818,749
Depreciation e 14 16,742,566 14,341,579
Less: Amounts capitalised to long B BIERHEESH
term construction contracts N 36(a) (4,004,234) (3,284,766)
12,738,332 11,056,813
Minimum lease payments under THREFEE
operating leases on land and Mz &xERE
buildings 2,739,203 3,694,110
Less: Amounts capitalised to long W BERHEE
term construction contracts BAR 2 (2,150,956) (2,724,077)
588,247 970,033
Recognition of prepaid land premiums/ #ERIER L~
land lease payments THI A E R 15 952,671 438,898
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. PBRBADEF (&)
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived after charging/ AEBZBRBRATEFE MR (G
(crediting): A)ARIER -
2005 2004
—E2E2RF —ZTEMEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Employee benefits expenses EERHNEM
(excluding directors’ remuneration (TEREESH:
(note 8)): (Kra#8)) -
Wages and salaries TEkE & 22,267,654 18,385,424
Pension scheme contributions BREEEHER 2,969,245 3,072,568
Less: Forfeited contributions o B R MR (71,496) (168,027)
Net pension scheme contributions* BRSFEHRUFE 2,897,749 2,904,541
Other expenses, net: H A5 %88
Severance payments BB - 766,851
Provision for doubtful debts R 6,680,808 2,000,000
Write-back of provision for R R 12 4
doubtful debts (5,094,715) -
Write-back of impairment of & B 1% & R (E [ B
a long term investment - (102,000)
Gain on disposal of items of HEWHE  BEMRERA
property, plant and equipment AR - (7,000)
Others HAth 747,679 =
2,333,772 2,657,851
Auditors’ remuneration R R € 930,000 900,000
Foreign exchange difference, net GNP R 67,448 (156,172)
Net rental income Me WA TR 550,000 1,036,022
= At 31 December 2005, the Group had no forfeited & RZZEZERAF+A=+—8 "

contributions available to reduce its contributions to
the pension schemes in future years (2004: Nil).

AN 6% B 3 AR 208 WA SRR A
TR D AR E AR ARAT B R
(ZZEZT@F - &) -
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMBREX
Group
N
2005 2004
—BERRF —EENE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on bank overdrafts and BERAFRAZEEER
bank loans wholly repayable ZBRITEXRRITER
within five years Z M2 7,057,805 4,382,868
Less: Amount capitalised to W BIERHBEANER
long term construction 2 538 (Mfat36(a))
contracts (note 36(a)) (909,081) (1,052,687)
6,148,724 3,330,181
Interest on a finance lease MEHREZFE 37,718 49,705
6,186,442 3,379,886
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEMS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant RiE MR A KA aHEFE 16115
to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Companies BECESMESAT
Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
REH
2005 2004
—EZhRF —ZEWEF
HKS$ HK$
E BT
Fees: e
Executive Directors MITES 216,000 216,000
Non-executive Directors FHTES 420,000 375,167
636,000 591,167
Other emoluments Hibi & (ITES) ¢
(Executive Directors):
Basic salaries, housing, EXHe RBE -
allowances and benefits in kind R R EY AR 5,452,567 5,984,033
Pension scheme contributions RINEFT B3R 359,160 359,160
Performance related bonuses TERIBABBEEA - 820,000
6,447,727 7,754,360
(a) Independent Non-executive Directors (a) BIYEHIITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive RERNIA TB T EHTE
directors during the year were as follows: ESWAEMT

Nunber of directors

BEEAH
2005 2004
—EEREF —ETPOF
Chu Yu Lin, David ol 120,000 120,000
Li Ka Cheung, Eric BREE 120,000 120,000
Li Zhaoxi ZJKER 60,000 15,167
300,000 255,167

There were no other emoluments payable to the
Independent Non-executive Directors during the

year (2004: Nil).

RERLEE MRS THL
FRTEFOHE (CTTM

F 8\ -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM=E (&)
(continued)
(b) Executive Directors and a Non-executive (b) BMITEBRIUTES
Director
Salaries,
housing,
allowances
and benefits Pension  Performance
in kind scheme related
4 ERB contributions bonuses Total
Fees EER Bk TI{ERHE remuneration
e EWFE TERN R A Memam
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
2005

Executive Directors: HOEE

Fu Shula it & fr 36,000 = = = 36,000
Wang Xinkuo T O 36,000 - - - 36,000
Ji Guirong ZEE 36,000 3,362,567 219,000 - 3,617,567
Diao Weicheng AEE 26,300 - - - 26,300
Liu Rongchun AERF 26,300 = = = 26,300
Ren Haifeng f£51& 36,000 2,090,000 140,160 - 2,266,160
Yang Chunshu RV 9,700 - - - 9,700
Yu Li T# 9,700 - - - 9,700

216,000 5,452,567 359,160 - 6,027,727

Non-executive Director: JEHITEE :
Ip Tak Chuen, EEs
Edmond 120,000 - - - 120,000

336,000 5,452,567 359,160 = 6,147,727
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM=E (&)
(continued)
(b) Executive Directors and a Non-executive (b) BITEERIHTES
Director (continued) (&)
Salaries,
housing,
allowances
and benefits Pension  Performance
in kind scheme related
¢ EE " contributions bonuses Total
Fees EER BiRe TI{E%RE remuneration
e BENFE STEMR HERA B4
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
2004
Executive Directors: HrEE:
Fu Shula 5 &F f2 22,452 - - - 22,452
Wang Xinkuo B 22,452 - - - 22,452
Ji Guirong FEE 36,000 3,584,033 219,000 250,000 4,089,033
Ren Haifeng fEgE 36,000 2,400,000 140,160 570,000 3,146,160
Yang Chunshu BEE 36,000 - - - 36,000
Yu Li T 36,000 - = = 36,000
Wang Xinyan TER 13,548 = = = 13,548
Pan Linwu EMR 13,548 - - - 13,548
216,000 5,984,033 359,160 820,000 7,379,193

Non-executive Director; FE#TE %
Ip Tak Chuen, EEg
Edmond 120,000 - - - 120,000

336,000 5,984,033 359,160 820,000 7,499,193

There was no arrangement under which a FAWEEALHEREESHEXR BN
director waived or agreed to waive any EEMBE -
remuneration during the year.



CATIC International Holdings Limited = B fi 2= £ if EIBR 2 R B R 2 7]

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

MBBRRME —z2s5t-a=+-5

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ 9.

REMUNERATION

The five highest paid individuals included two (2004:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining three (2004: three) non-directors, highest
paid individuals for the year are as follows:

IEEEHEEZHE

hEsRERFALREME (ZTTXN
FMBEF REMS2HBH
REXHES - =% (ZFTFTNH
F:ZR)RAFFEFALZHE
ZEBOT

Group

by |
2005 2004
—2E2RF —EENE
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Basic salaries, housing, EXFe  BE - EM

allowances and benefits in kind NE Y &= 3,298,000 3,717,500
Pension scheme contributions RO FHEI R 222,139 235,206
Performance related bonuses TERIIEAIEAL 814,000 889,000
4,334,139 4,841,706

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

WeETIBEZRSHIFEFESR
B8R

as follows:
Number of employees
BEAH
2005 2004
—Z2ERF —ZETMF
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7L £ 1,500,000/% 7T 3
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T & 2,000,000 7T - 2
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TAX

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the
Group had available tax losses brought forward to
offset the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong for the current and the prior years. Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

10. HIE

HRASEAR A B ZHEEERR
NEHEANEFER LFRERBEL
L o i L IS 2
BAMEHERE - HfitE 2R
AXEAREKEMERRERZ
BE - REEBEZRITEN - 28
REGIFE -

Group

rEE
2005 2004
—EEEFE —ZEWEF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT

Current BN EA

— Mainland China — R 3,624,730 1,994,058
— Elsewhere — H i3 [= 222,300 190,000
Deferred (note 21) RIE (Hfat21) 2,796,342 1,364,075
Total tax charge for the year AREEHIBRZ A58 6,643,372 3,548,133
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10.

TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss)

before tax using the statutory rates for the countries

in which the Company and the majority of its

subsidiaries and associates are domiciled to the tax

expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

10. BiE (&

ARARETEMB QR EEERQ
BE R E HIRER R E 2B A
A, (B 18) BiTE 3 i B AN 5% B
REABEGFE ZBAS 2 H R

mT

Group - 2005
AEE-—FFEF
Mainland

Hong Kong China Elsewhere Total
B8 R Hitrith & &t
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Profit/(loss) before tax BREBLATE R, (BB) 13,973,180 22,663,144 (5,448) 36,630,876
Tax at the statutory BEEMEGE
tax rates ZHBR 2,445,307 7,478,837 37,045 9,961,189
Lower tax rates for specific ~ $#E &M 2 &K
provinces = - (6,404,082) = (6,404,082)
Deemed income of the PRC ~ FEIZE%E 7 K&
construction business WA 109,045 332,111 - 441,156
Profits and losses attributable 75 B & A &
to associates Z B (313,653) (194,112) - (507,765)
Income not subject to tax Tt Gl ON (2,091,799) (314,983) (26,612) (2,433,394)
Expenses not deductible ENGEk b3
for tax 2,531,979 1,373,268 32,318 3,937,565
Tax lossess utilised from BA BT
previous periods HIEE (271,834) - - (271,834)
Increase in unutilised losses 4 B 45 82 7 18 &5 18
carried forward & - 1,740,988 179,549 1,920,537
Tax charge at the Group's AEEEBH R
effective rate HIAR 2,409,045 4,012,027 222,300 6,643,372
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10. HIE (&)

Group - 2004
AEE-—TFTNE
Mainland
Hong Kong China Elsewhere Total
B A B fth 1 [ &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(Restated)
(Z51)
Profit/(loss) before tax BB H, (B18) 25,910,573 (5,004,782) 546,640 21,452,431
Tax at the statutory BREERERGE
tax rates 2B 4,534,350 (1,651,578) 34,925 2,917,697
Lower tax rates for specific B EE M ZEBIK
provinces it & - 973,217 - 973,217
Deemed income of the PRC ~ BIEEZE 7 R%
construction business WA 30,112 597,705 - 627,817
Profits and losses attributable 715 B & A &
to associates i - 185,822 - 185,822
Income not subject to tax BIEHBBA (3,194,385) (1,082,808) - (4,277,193)
Expenses not deductible ENGEk b
for tax 203,677 1,026,431 7,139 1,237,247
Increase in unutilised losses & B i & & 5 T E5 18
carried forward 80 756,358 979,232 147,936 1,883,526
Tax charge at the Group's AEEEBH R
effective rate MIER 2,330,112 1,028,021 190,000 3,548,133

AEEETHEWNE QRS EER
BEELARREANFEFELERER
RBREEMST ((FREH]) - &
A% =FRNEB50%Z AT B TR
%o ltIh BS—KPEWBRRE
ERZEEI65%ZBEEMBHRM
concessionary CIT rate of 16.5%. o

Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were eligible for
exemption from corporate income tax (“CIT"”) for the
two years starting from the first year in which
assessable profits were generated, and a 50%
exemption from CIT for the following three years. In
addition, another PRC subsidiary was eligible for a

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting B & A Al 2 18 /963,050 7T
to HK$963,050 (2004: Nil), is included in “Share of (ZZZMF : |)EBRBELFSA
profits and losses of associates, net of tax” on the Rz [D 1 EAr1E% - EHK

MEIA -

face of the consolidated income statement.
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11.

12.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
the parent for the year ended 31 December 2005 dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company was
HK$6,828,069 (2004: HK$359,486) (note 35(b)).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

11.

12.

R REAE R FF
il

REARBHBRERRIEZHE
EERE+_A=Z+—RHILEER
RAREEEAFEBEAR
6,828,069 L (Z T & Y F
359,486/ 7T) (K1a£35(b)) °

AAREBERRESS
R & F

BREABHNDIREAREEBRK
REEAFENEREFABSETER
Bz mEFIHEAE -

BREFERNTIREADFEBR
REEREFNE - BIEFESRE
KRB 2 FREHTEBBZINE
FHOBREBRABEEEHEETE AR
EroEsEgnTaRmET Y
BEINEF D HGEE o
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EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on:

12.

MEHRRMMET —e2ns+-p=+-58

AAREBRRESGS
REBR (&)

BREAREETRNNAEDIRE :

2005 2004
—EERF —_ZETWF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings 7
Profit for the year attributable to ~ ZR‘A &) & @ A% R
ordinary equity holders of the JE At 7K £ A1 8
parent 26,053,554 13,563,689
Number of shares
k58 B
2005 2004
—EZRF —ZTWF
Shares iz
Weighted average number of ordinary FB{EaFEBRERNAF 2
shares in issue during the year FABETETRRZ
used in the basic earnings per share INHE 15 B
calculation 3,741,481,000 3,739,555,317

Effect of dilution — weighted average

number of ordinary shares: INHEFH 2L
Share options fE Mk

BEasyE-ERARZ

- 15,665,215

3,741,481,000 3,755,220,532

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Commencing from the year ended 31 December 2004,
a portion of the Group’s and the Company’s investment
property situated in Hong Kong has been taken up by
the Company as its office premises. Accordingly, the
relevant portion of such property was transferred to
leasehold land and buildings at its carrying value of
HK$12,750,000 (note 14) in prior year, leaving the
valuation of the portion of the investment property at
HK$12,750,000 as at 31 December 2004.

13.

REME

H-EZETWRF+=A=1+—HH
% REBRAARMNRES 2K
BMEZ —BHRERBRRRPRAE
Fro Btk - ZEWEZEBEEH R
AFCEEAN LT RET  EE
#12,750,0008 7T (Mfa£14) » Feg
ZEREMER D 2HER_ZZTN
F+—-HA=+—H%A12,750,000%

JC °
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13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The said property was revalued at HK$14,900,000 (2004:
HK$25,500,000) based on the valuation performed by
Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on the market value basis
as at 31 December 2005. A revaluation surplus of
HK$2,150,000 (2004: HK$5,700,000) was credited to
the income statement for the year accordingly.

During the year ended 31 December 2004, the
subsidiaries’ investment properties situated in Mainland
China were transferred to leasehold land and buildings
upon expiry of the operating lease agreements at their
aggregate carrying value of HK$3,091,481 based on
the valuations performed by Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuers, on the open market value and existing
use basis at the date of transfer.

An analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s
investment properties is as follows:

13. REW (12)

BYEESERGEMTETGHAE
RARZMEREES Ll ER=
EERE+_A=+—B2zEHH
/414,900,000 7t (ZZEZPYF
25,500,000 70) ° At + ANFEF|
MR AE M (E2,150,0008 7T
—ZTZT P4 : 5,700,000 T) °

NR_EZNF+_A=+—HIHF
E WEBARNURTBRBEANZEE
MEREEROENHEEERN L
HRAETF - B EFERAHEME
BETE EFEEM AR A AR E R
ZAAAMEREEBREEHET
518 - M{EE% /453,091,481 7T °

REEBRARRBIZREMED T
T

Group Company
r5H PN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—2ZREF —TTMEF —2ZREF —TTME
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Carrying amount R—H—H
at 1 January ZIEHEE 12,750,000 22,891,481 12,750,000 19,800,000
Net profit from a fair value ~ AFERHEZ
adjustment 3 I 2,150,000 5,700,000 2,150,000 5,700,000
Transfer to owner-occupied ~ E{FET A
property (note 14) WE (Kia14) - (15,841,481) - (12,750,000)
14,900,000 12,750,000 14,900,000 12,750,000

The Group’s and the Company’s investment property is
situated in Hong Kong and is held under a medium
term lease. At 31 December 2005, this investment
property is pledged to secure bank loans of the Group
(note 31(a)(v)) and was leased to a shareholder of the
Company under an operating lease, further details of
which are included in notes 37(a) and 40(a)(iii) to the
financial statements.

REBRARBZEZEEWETIAR
BB WEZRPPBNFE - RZTZT
EF+-A=+—8  HEEME
EERF  (EAAEERITERZE
R (B aE31(a)(v)) - WIRIBELEEFELY
HHAFARRZKE @ FHEIHRY
7% ¥R % MF 5£37(a) &2 40(a)(iii)
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14. 14. Y% - BENKE

Group - 31 December 2005
AE@--E2RFT-A=1-A

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Generation
plant  Furniture,
Leasehold and related  fixtures and
Construction ~ Land and improvements ~ Plantand structure  equipment Motor  Tools and
in progress  buildings B8  machinery ZEEER KH-ZE  vehicles moulds Total
ERIE tHREF  NREE HERER  AERE k&% HE IERES At
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
7 7 AT A7 A7 BT AT A7 7
At31December 2004and  H-FZME
at 1 January 2005: TZA=+-8k
“2514-4-A
Cost or valuation RER A 16,966,753 81,742,772 14163816 10,392,570 76,383,751 16,138,417 11,988,346 1,803,080 229,579,505
Accumulated depreciation BiENE - (19,943,958) (12,137,658)  (7,970,936) - (13,943.466)  (8,920,450)  (1,559,876) (64,476,344)
Net carrying amount REFE 16,966,753 61,798,814 2,026,158  2.421,634 76,383,751 2194951  3,067,8% 243,204 165,103,161
At 1 January 2005, netof  RM-EFRE-F-H
accumulated depreciation NEEENE 16,966,753 61,798,814 2,026,158 2,421,634 76,383,751 2194951  3,067,8% 243,204 165,103,161
Additions HE 8,965,075 696,804 304217 295,808 4088535 3,749,524 393,686 462,944 21,613,593
Disposals = = = = = = = (23,186) - (23,186)
Transfer £ (3,466,627) 1,016,625 = - 2,450,002 = = = =
Surplus on revaluation EfEH = - - - 1998313 - - - 1993123
Depreciation provided EMRERR
during the year - (Q715,681)  (1,024,488)  (1,843,747)  (8,052,634)  (1,461,754)  (1,419,789) (224.473)  (16,742,566)
Exchange realignment L 326,284 726,062 = - 1,468,918 68 23,804 - 2545136
At31 December 2005, net ~ H=EFRE
of accumulated tZAz+-8"
depreciation NBZENE 22791485 61522624 1305887 3530695 78331695  4482,789 2,042,411 481,675 174,489,261
At 31 December 2005: k2
t=A=1-R:
Cost or valuation GBS 22,791,485 84,487,197 14,468,033 13345378 78331695 19,888,016 12232535 2,266,024 247,810,363
Accumulated depreciation BiENE - (22,964,573) (13,162,146)  (9,814,683) - (15405227) (10,190,124)  (1,784349) (73,321,102
Net carrying amount REFE 22791485 61522624 1305887 3530695 78331695  4482,789 2,042,411 481,675 174,489,261
Analysis of cost or valuation: ~ REZHEA :
At cost BRE 22,191,485 84,487,197 14,468,033 13,345,378 - 19888016 12,232,535 2,266,024 169,478,668
At 31 December 2003 B-E3RE+2A
valuation =t-BzfE = = = - 78,331,69 = = - 7833169
22,791,485 84,487,197 14,468,033 13345378 78331695 19,888,016 12232535 2,266,024 247,810,363
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y% - BMEMKE (&)
EQUIPMENT (continued)

Group - 31 December 2004
AEE-“TEME+ZA=T-A

Generation
plant  Furniture,
Leasehold and related ~fixtures and
Construction Land and improvements  Plant and structure — equipment Motor ~ Tools and
inprogress  buildings B mahiney EERER AflEE vehicles moulds Total
ERIE THREFT NERE REREE  AEGE E ] A8 IARER a3
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT AT AT AT AT AT AT BT
At 1 January 2004: RZTEME
-R-R:
Cost or valuation RESfHE 10689414 62,273,251 13725379 10,890,955 67577442  15456,754 11,742,878 1,662,575 194,018,648
Acumulated depreciation  Z7EHTE - (17,744555) (11133.242)  (7,712,059) - (13,040311) (7,817,935  (1,446,100) (58,894,202)
Net carrying amount FAFE 10689414 4452869 2592137  3,1788% 67577442 2416443 3924943 216,475 135,124,446
At 1 January 2004, netof  R-ETME-F-H-
accumulated depreciation NEEENE 10,689,414 4452869 2592137 3,1788% 67577442 2416443 3,924,943 216,475 135,124,446
Additions HE 24,281,917 147,037 438437 531,700 2,638279 713,303 504,426 140,505 29,455,604
Disposals = = = = - (1,086,127) = = - (1,086,127)
Transfer B (18,004578) 3,481,003 - - 14452820 - 70,755 - -
Transfer from investment EERENZ
properties (note 13) (Hitn3) - 15,841,481 - - - - - - 15,841481
Surplus on revaluation @S - - - - 109,336 - - - 109,336
Depreciation provided EMRERR
during the year - (2,199.403)  (1,004,416) (1,288,962)  (7,307,999) (994,795 (1,432,228) (113,776) (14,341,579
At31 December 2004, net RN -ZZME
of accumulated tZAz+-8"
depreciation NEEENE 16,966,753  61,798814 2,026,158 2,421,634 76383751 2194951  3,067,8% 243,204 165,103,161
At 31 December 2004: RZZEME
tZR=1-R:
Cost or valuation REdfE 16,966,753 81,742,772 14163816 10392570 76383751 16138417 11988346 1,803,080 229,579,505
Accumulated depreciation ZENE - (19,943,958) (12,137,658) (7,970,936 - (13,943.466)  (8,920,450)  (1,559,876) (64,476,344)
Net carrying amount FEFE 16,966,753 61,798,814 2,026,158  2.421,634 76,383,751 2194951  3,067,89 243,204 165,103,161
Analysis of cost or valuation: ~ BEZHEA :
At cost kEE 16,966,753 81,742,772 14,163 816 10,392,570 - 16138417 11,988,346 1,803,080 153,195,754
At 31 December 2004 F-FEMETZA
valuation =t-AzfE = - - - 76383751 - - - 76383751

16,966,753 81,742,772 14163816 10392570 76,383,751  16,138417 11,988,346 1,803,080 229,579,505
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14. M1% - BMENRE (&)

Company - 31 December 2005
APARA-ZEFREF+ZA=1+—H
Furniture,
fixtures and

Land and equipment Moter
building B KB vehicles Total
THREF &L RE A%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2004 and R -ZTZWE
at 1 January 2005: +-A=+—H
F_ZEREF
—H—R:
Cost [RE 12,750,000 551,948 780,000 14,081,948
Accumulated depreciation ZENE - (375,498) (780,000) (1,155,498)
Net carrying amount REFE 12,750,000 176,450 = 12,926,450
At 1 January 2005, net of R-_EZERE
accumulated depreciation —H—A"
HEZBEIME 12,750,000 176,450 - 12,926,450
Additions NE = 882,441 = 882,441
Depreciation provided FANERE
during the year (300,000) (229,533) - (529,533)
At 31 December 2005, net R -ZTEFHF
of accumulated +—A=+—8"
depreciation mk2RRHE 12,450,000 829,358 = 13,279,358
At 31 December 2005: RZZTREF
+=ZA=+—-8:
Cost RE 12,750,000 1,434,389 780,000 14,964,389
Accumulated depreciation 2ERE (300,000) (605,031) (780,000) (1,685,031)
Net carrying amount BREFE 12,450,000 829,358 - 13,279,358
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y¥ - MEMZE (&)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Company - 31 December 2004
ARF-—2EME+-R=+—H

Furniture,
fixtures and

Land and equipment Moter
building RIS vehicles Total
T REF e HE G
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2004: s
—ﬂ A :
Cost [RE - 495,783 780,000 1,275,783
Accumulated depreciation 2REME = (291,395) (780,000) (1,071,395)
Net carrying amount RESE = 204,388 = 204,388
At 1 January 2004, net of RZZEEWE-—HF—F
accumulated depreciation Nk2EBHE = 204,388 = 204,388
Additions NE - 56,165 - 56,165
Transfer from investment % BRENE
properties (note 13) (Fzt13) 12,750,000 = = 12,750,000
Depreciation provided FRMERE
during the year - (84,103) - (84,103)
At 31 December 2004, net R-ZZZWF
of accumulated +-A=+—H
depreciation NRERME 12,750,000 176,450 - 12,926,450
At 31 December 2004 and RZZZME
1 January 2005: +=A=1+-8
R-_ZZLE
—A—A8:
Cost RE 12,750,000 551,948 780,000 14,081,948
Accumulated depreciation LERE - (375,498) (780,000) (1,155,498)

Net carrying amount EHEFE 12,750,000 176,450 = 12,926,450
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14. M1% - BMENRE (&)

AREERARR 2B L MEF

An analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s leasehold ST
land and buildings is as follows:
Group Company
rEE NN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—22RF —ZEEMF —ZE2ARF —EEMF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
V- ¥ BT b-¥m BT
(Restated)
(E3)
At cost, located: RE R
Hong Kong, held under H5F - BERH
a long term lease MAOHE 6,000,000 6,000,000 - -
Hong Kong, held undera &7 @ &+ H
medium term lease BAOFE 12,750,000 12,750,000 12,750,000 12,750,000
Mainland China, held under AR
a medium term lease HEMEAR/FAE 65,737,197 62,992,772 - -
84,487,197 81,742,772 12,750,000 12,750,000

The net book value of the Group's items of property,

plant and equipment held under a hire purchase

contract included in the total amount of

motor vehicles

at 31 December 2005 amounted to HK$315,957 (2004:

HK$586,777).

FAZZEERE+ _A=+—HAELRE
ZAEBZREBEANRFEZYE - BEM
RETEE REFEA3159578 T (=T F
U4 : 586,777/ 7C) °
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

At 31 December 2005, the Group’s generation plant
and related structure was revalued at HK$78,331,695
(2004: HK$76,383,751) by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited on the open market value and existing use
basis, resulting in a revaluation surplus of
HK$1,993,123 (2004: HK$109,336). Out of the
revaluation surplus of HK$1,993,123 as at 31
December 2005, a deficit of HK$21,363 was charged
to the property, plant and equipment revaluation
reserve to offset the revaluation surplus arising from
the valuation of similar assets previously credited to
the property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
whereas the remaining surplus of HK$2,014,486 was
credited to the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2005. In prior year, out
of revaluation surplus of HK$109,336 as at 31
December 2004, a surplus of HK$87,538 was credited
to the consolidated income statement to offset the
revaluation deficit arising from the valuation of same
assets previously charged to the consolidated income
statement whereas the remaining surplus of
HK$21,798 was credited to the property, plant and
equipment revaluation reserve.

Had these generation plant and related structure
been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, their carrying
amounts would have been HK$56,065,927 (2004:
HK$53,628,348).

At 31 December 2005, certain of the Group’s land and
buildings and generation plant and related structure
with net book values of approximately HK$32,825,835
(2004: HK$20,236,045) and HK$7,599,569 (2004:
HK$7,456,181), respectively, were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (notes
317(a)(i) and (ii)).

14.

ME - BMENZE (&)

RZZTZERF+=ZA=+—H ' &K
EEZRERERE @RS BT
HERARZRAHRMEREREAEAS
BEEHEITEFHEA78,331,695%5
T(ZZEZWN&F : 76,383,75178
JT) ' FALLEA 1,993,123 L (=%
TPI4 : 10933608 7T) 2 EHA
#%Be-NR_TETRF+-_A=1+—H
21,993, 1238 T2 EFBHBF -
21,3638 2 EBERYZE - KE
REEGHBENR  WKEBER
AAYE  BEMKEBEEGHREZ
HUEEETHERELAZERR
£ o B2~ 22,014,486 7T 2 B el
HABE-_ZTERE+_A=1—
BIEFEZHEEMBER - BEF
B RZZEZMF+=-A=+—H
2 109,336 L 2 Eff B ERF
87,538/ L« BERE 5T ARG FIE
= UEHEATEF AZETER
ZRA—BEETHEEREE 2B
B8 - 82 R 221,798 T 2 B Al
AAAME BEMKEEGHHE -

MZEBRERE LB BREARESL
ﬁJ‘éZ&Wﬁé%F?ﬁ%&Wﬁﬁ%?ﬁ)\
B AIBRSECEREERER
56,065,927 L (Z & T M F :
53,628,348/ 7T) °

—ETRFE+=ZA=+—H "' &k

,aaﬁn BI1#732,825,835%8 ¢ (- &
T g F : 20,236,045%8 L) &
7,599,569 L (Z T & Y F
7,456,181 7T) 2 NE B E T b
MEFHEEHEREBARELED
BH - EAASEME—RRTE
B2 =R (BaE31@)0) &)
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15. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS/LAND 15 At #H + # 7

LEASE PAYMENTS g
Group
rEH
2005 2004
—BE2RF —EENE
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Carrying amount at 1 January: R—A—BZKHEHE :
As previously reported 0 Al 2 3 - =
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 BRAHKAS 172 £
(note 2.2(a)) (Ff5t2.2(a)) 7,778,368 8,217,266
As restated E]l| 7,778,368 8,217,266
Exchange realignment bEE 3 S 1,014,034 -
Addition* 38 o0 * 21,698,113 =
Recognised during the year (note 6) F AR (H776) (952,671) (438,898)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—BZKEE 29,537,844 7,778,368
Current portion included in mEE D - BEE
prepayments, deposits and other BNRE - HeREM
receivables FEU R R A (959,576) (446,008)
Non-current portion R B H 28,578,268 7,332,360
The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease ZHEE T HIRE AR E LA
and is situated in the PRC. A E o
= During the year ended 31 December 2004, a deposit & REBEZE-TENF+_A=+—
of HK$21,698,113 was paid by Hangzhou Sealand BEE @ mNESHEEA—IBE
for the purchase of a land use right in the PRC (note HREz T RSN —%E
23). The land use right, which has a lease term of 42 ©21,698,113%8 7T (Af7#23) ° &
years, had been used for the construction of a THERECHERR2FE B
generation plant during the year. As of the date of RERNBRBEEER - RAR
this report, the directors are in the process of HH EFERNFHEERENRLT
obtaining from the relevant authority the land use MEARERE  EERA/Z LMD
right certificate which, in the opinion of the directors, REFERBINEE R ERESE -

will be issued in due course.
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16. GOODWILL 16. BE

Group - 31 December 2005
AEE-—ZZRF

+=—HA=+—8H
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2005: R-ZZETRF—H—A8:
Cost as previously reported JR{E 2R A 2 72,189,560
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 B MHKFRS 32 57 £
(note 2.2(d)) (Kt at2.2(d)) (34,073,058)
Cost as restated REE7 38,116,502
Accumulated amortisation ZTEEE S MO (B R AT 2 W
and impairment as
previously reported 34,073,058
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 FRMHKFRS 32 &
(note 2.2(d)) (Kt at2.2(d)) (34,073,058)
Accumulated amortisation RIEHEH R EET
and impairment as restated -
Net carrying amount B FE 38,116,502

Cost and carrying amount RZEZEREF+=ZA=+—8H
at 31 December 2005 ZIREREREE 38,116,502
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GOODWILL (continued) HE (&)
Group — 31 December 2004
REH - —ZTZTF
+=—A=+—8H
HKS$
BT
At 1 January 2004: RZZFETZWMFE—-—H—A8 :
Cost JRME 72,189,560
Accumulated amortisation REEE LA
and impairment (31,690,777)
Net carrying amount BRmFE 40,498,783
Cost at 1 January 2004, netof RZ-ZTEZTWNF—F—HZRAE -
accumulated amortisation and  F1Br 2 518 84 KR E
impairment 40,498,783
Amortisation provided during FAEHEE
the year (2,382,281)
At 31 December 2004 RZEZME+=_A=+—H 38,116,502
At 31 December 2004: RZFEEMF+_A=+—H:
Cost R1E 72,189,560
Accumulated amortisation RREERBE
and impairment (34,073,058)
Net carrying amount BREFE 38,116,502
In 2004, goodwill not previously eliminated RZZZTWNE  LERBELGE HEERE

2 FB T A B BRI E (5 3HE A EIR 2 20
-

against the consolidated reserves was amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimate useful
life of 20 years.
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GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill with indefinite
lives

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of Hangzhou
Sealand has been allocated to the electric and steam
power supply cash-generating unit, one of the reporting
segments of the Group, for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the electric and steam
power supply cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period. The
discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 10%
(2004: 12%) and cash flows beyond the first five-year
period are extrapolated using a zero growth rate.

Key assumptions used in its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill are as
follows:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is
the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budgeted year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
units.

16.

BmE (&)
WEENR 2 EE 2 EA R

KRN SBAEL > BBE SR
EEAREAHB RS ELET
(A EEES— A2 55ME) R
BRI -

Eajj&;ﬁ}wﬁfziﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁz
e ERE I IREFEREES

ZEFEAERKREASR=EER

i 45 L 78) ﬁledETFEiimi&aE%F
EHNRFHUBEEmME - TE
AZIBEEARI0%(ZTETHF :
12%) - BB AFHHR & RER

ETERBERENRAZESRERA
FfERzEBRRMT :

HEEFE-FBEENEZHED
REREFEN—FRERNTY
EMEE - WHAERPREERE
g -

FHEE-FEBZIFBERTINBEA
¥RBRARBERNETZHERR
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. B A =
Company
PN

2005 2004

g3 - —EEOEEF

HKS$ HK$

BT BT

Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRD - RE 277,877,800 43,659,910

Due from subsidiaries BB A Rl R 3K 332,319,066 498,352,327

Due to subsidiaries = INGIE (13,000,000) =

597,196,866 542,012,237

Less: Provision for impairment B OREREB A A
and amounts due from KRR
subsidiaries (243,376,497) (243,376,497)

353,820,369 298,635,740

During the year, an amount due from a subsidiary of FRN - MBARIRFK234,217,8908TLEE
HK$234,217,890 was captialised as the Company’s KILEBHZWB AR ZIZLEK A -
investment cost of that subsidiary.

The balances with the subsidiaries are unsecured, HtE AR EE 2 EREREER - £
interest-free and are not expected to be repaid within EREBEAR—FRNER MBARIRKS

one year. The carrying amounts of these amount due RMEARFIEBEzEEEREQATEES
from/to subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. WEBATER (&)

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the balance

sheet date are as follows:

Nominal value
of issued and

REEBZETEWE QA

mF

fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations ERTRAR the Company Principal
Name BMAYL/ LEREK/ M KAAEERAE activities
1 BV ES 1 RAZEE BEAHL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
=% %
FEA Holdings Limited Cayman Islands/ US$18,880,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 18,880,000% 7. REER
ReHS/ 54
Far East Aluminium British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 - 100 Investment holding
(Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100E 7T REER
ERERHR/ER
Far East Aluminium British Virgin Islands/ US$6,000 = 100 Investment holding
(B.V.I.) Limited Hong Kong 6,000% 7T REEKR
ABRUHE/BE
FEA Engineering British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 100% 1 REER
RERAHS/BF
FEA Investments British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong (EV RERR
ERERHE/ER
Polyson Investment British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 = Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong (EH REER
ABRUHE/BE
CATIC Navigation British Virgin Islands/ us$2 100 - Investment holding
Technology Limited Hong Kong VEy REER

RERAEE/ER

=X
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. WEB A TR (&

(continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the balance REBR Y TEWE LG SR
sheet date are as follows: (continued) mE (&

Nominal value
of issued and

fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations ERTRAR the Company Principal
Name BMAYL/ LEREK/ M KAAEERAE activities
1 BV ES 1 RAZEE BEAHL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
=% %
Strong Power Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
International Limited ~ &% 28T REZER
BEARBRAF
CATIC Helicopter British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
(H.K.) Limited Hong Kong VE¥ REER
ERERHEE/ER
CATIC General Aviation  British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 = Investment holding
Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ve REEKR
ABRUHE/BE
CATIC Helicopter PRC/Mainland China HK$42,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development PE/ER 42,000,000 7T REZER
(Shenzhen) Limited*
o E T R IR
(RINBRAR*
Billirich British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1,000 T REZER
RERAHS/BF
Florex Investment British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 2ET RERR

RBRAEE /B
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. WEB A TR (&

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the balance

sheet date are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value
of issued and

REEBZTEWNBRAAFE

mr ('

fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations ERTRAR the Company Principal
Name BMAYL/ LEREK/ M KAREERE activities
1 BV ES 1 RAZEE BEAHL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
=% %
Starnet Investment British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong (EY REZER
RERAHS/BR
Sino-Aviation British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Investments# Hong Kong (EV RERR
ERERHE/ER
Better View Hong Kong/ HK$2 = 100 Property holding
Investment Limited Mainland China 28T FEMZ
HEREERAF &E /BN
Far East Aluminium Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100 Property holding
Works (Guangzhou) Mainland China 28T RENE
Company Limited &5/ AR
BRIEVETR
(BM)BRAF
FEA Technology Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of
Limited B 28T transportation
RRIEME services
BRAA REERRL



17.

Annual Report 2005 — ZZ R F F 3§

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the balance

sheet date are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value
of issued and

MEHRRMMET —e2ns+-p=+-58

17. WEBARER (&)

REHERZEEWED A
mE ()

fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations ERTRAR the Company Principal
Name BMAYL/ LEREK/ M KAAEERAE activities
1 BV ES 1 RAZEE BEAHL TETEH
Direct  Indirect
E# %

Far East Aluminium Hong Kong HK$90,500,000 - 100 Design, manufacture
Works Company BB 90,500,000/ Jt and installation
Limited (“Far East of curtain walls,
Aluminium”) aluminium windows

ZRRETIRFRAA and other related
([RRBE]) products

Rt HERZERE
Bl mEREM
H#EER

Seniford Engineering Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Design, manufacture
Limited B 28T and installation

SHEIRERATA of curtain walls,

aluminium windows
and other related
products

Rt BERZEEE
Bl mERELM
HEEm

Far East Aluminium Singapore SGD50,000 - 100 Design, manufacture
Works (Singapore) N 50,0003 7T and installation of

Pte. Ltd.

curtain walls, aluminium
windows and other
related products

Hat HERZREE
BiE - BEREM
T
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. WEBATER (&)

(continued)

REHERZEEWED A
mE ()

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the balance
sheet date are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value
of issued and

fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations ERTRAR the Company Principal
Name HEMR&L/ LERA/ M KD AL R A activities
£ EMRE£HE RAZEE BEEfML FTEEK
Direct Indirect
E# EF
Netfortune Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Design, manufacture
Engineering (FEA) il 25,00070 5 % and installation
Macau Limited of curtain walls,
aluminium windows
and other other
related products
Rit - RERZE
KERmE &
REWAREE R
Heng Fai International  British Virgin Islands/ HK$1,000 - 100 Manufacture of
Ltd. Mainland China 1,000% 1T curtain walls,
KBRZHS/BR aluminium windows
and other related
products
HEFRER BER
HinAlE R
Netfortune Limited Hong Kong/ HK$500,000 - 100 Installation of
NEERDF Mainland China 500,000/ & curtain walls and
BE/BR aluminium windows
TRREBEBRER
Netfortune (Shanghai) PRC/ RMB 10,000,000 - 96.25 Design, manufacture
Aluminium Works Mainland China 10,000,0007C and installation
Company Limited**  # & /ER ARE of curtain walls,

FENERETRE aluminium windows
BRAR** and other related

products

Hat HERTE
RERRE RE
REMEHEM
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. WEBATER (&)

(continued)
REEAZEEHBAMHE
WmE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the balance
sheet date are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value
of issued and

fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations ERTRAR the Company Principal
Name HEMR&L/ LERA/ M KD AL R A activities
a1 TR B % it B RAZEE ERBHL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B &
Hangzhou Sealand***  PRC/Mainland China RMB68,000,000 - 70 Generation and sale
HUIN g g % ¢ HE/ AR 68,000,0007T of electric and steam
ARE power
HERHETNREAA
Far East Aluminum United States of US$200,000 - 100 Design, manufacture and
Works (U.S.) America 200,000% T installation of curtain
Corporation# xH walls, aluminium
windows and other
related products
Hat HERZRERE
Bt BEREM
HEE R
* CATIC Helicopter Development (Shenzhen) Limited is @ H R B A B AR 7 ORI &
registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PR 2~ BIAR 4% R BA i 1 7 2 A
the PRC law. B
*x Netfortune (Shanghai) Aluminium Works Company B EBNEREIRABRAARE

Limited is registered as a co-operative joint venture
under the PRC law.

*ok Hangzhou Sealand is registered as a foreign investment
enterprise under the PRC law.

# These companies were formed during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

REDEPIEM AR ERERE -

xRN EAR R R BDE G R RS0

Bz e

# It ERBRFAKIL e

ERINHEZRARTIEHELRFE
XEIBRASEEEFETER
MZARBMBRR - EFR /M
FHIEMHE AR AR KR DT

£ o



CATIC International Holdings Limited = B fi 2= £ if EIBR 2 R B R 2 7]

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

MBBRRME —z2s5t-a=+-5

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. BE QXA ER

Group
%
2005 2004
—EEREF —EENF
HK$ HK$
E BT
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 110,692,346 32,563,423
Goodwill on acquisition Uy B e = 2,936,264 2,936,264
113,628,610 35,499,687

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Particulars of
issued shares/
registered share

Place of
incorporation/

BEAREENT :

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

capital registration the Group Principal
Name BERTRA/ 2T REBESLRA activities
£ it & & & fif it 2 BHRBEHL TEEER
2005 2004
“ZTIE _ZTMEF
China Nav-Info* Registered PRC/Mainland 28.71 28.71  Manufacture of
b R 4 * share capital of China location-based
RMB63,400,000 & /B A navigation products
i E A and provision of
63,400,0007T related services
AR EETNEMERR
AR MR
CATIC Siwei* Registered PRC/Mainland 40 40  Provision of
7O 4 3 R share capital of China aero-photographic
RMB56,758,150 & /B A services
o i & A< REMERY RB
56,758,1507T
AR
Sino Gas* Ordinary shares of Hong Kong 26.42 - Trading of conversion
O 2 e * HK$0.02 each & parts and gas station
Tk ek equipment and the
0.02/8 7T operation of natural
gas stations
BEEBTHR
N E U6 5% 1 o
18 R RINH b
* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other @ 3 3 B3 %2 ok B 7 2k H b % ok B

Ernst & Young International member firms.

BRZ KB TR
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. BME RRIER (&)
(continued)
In December 2004, Billirich, a wholly-owned subsidiary RZZEZEWNF+_HF ' K&EBE—
of the Group, entered into separate agreements with =& B A ﬂBllhrlchéﬁi_%?ﬁi%
two independent third parties to acquire for a total of =EFVEBZME  WHREAER
885,000,000 ordinary shares of Sino Gas (formerly 830,975,000 7T (Kf7£38) e H Uk
known as Millennium), representing an aggregate of 8 & £885,000,0000% i 2R 8 (B
approximately 26.42% of the then issued share capital RIEER]) 2D - (AR hReEE %
of Sino Gas, for an aggregate cash consideration of THRARSG £426.42% - ZWEER
HK$30,975,000 (note 38). The acquisition was —ETRF— A - MHRHERERE
completed in January 2005 and the investment in Sino ZREBEDNERAREE ZHBE QA o
Gas has been accounted for as an associate of the
Group thereafter.
In August 2005, the Group subscribed for an additional RZZEZRFNA - AEBEFEINR
1,770,000,000 ordinary shares of Sino Gas for a cash B% 1,770,000,000% 71 S 32 ﬁﬁjatﬁ
consideration of HK$35,400,000 and the Group’s equity f% - 3]/ & R {E 535,400,000/ ¢ °
interest in Sino Gas remained at 26.42% after the said RGN EREIE - REBRFPHZ
subscription. e IR AR AE#57026.42% ©
The total consideration paid by the Group for the above AEERN EWEZAREZERE
acquisitions together with the direct professional fee BREXBHR67,678,6048 T +
amounted to HK$67,678,604 and the related excess B ERE R KA DA
over cost of acquisition of this associate of 6,069,856/8 7T + AR FRNELRE
HK$6,069,856 was recognised as income in the AMERERBUA -
consolidated income statement during the year
accordingly.
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRINEAEHEE R A2 BE
information of the Group’s associates: B E
China Nav-Info CATIC Siwei Sino Gas
b R 4 4 3 R R B
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
—9enF -TINF -YEF -TIMF -BRIF —TINF

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT BT BT
Assets BE 81,198,484 60,336,902 72,052,950 81,611,150 479,956,000 -
Liabilities BfE (19,029,662) (6,261,114) (14,123,819) (17,452,763) 147,635,000 -
Revenue /6 84,098,650 25,048,528 21,661,175 31,739,431 119,688,000 -
Profit/(loss) wH,/ (E18) 7,561,957  (4,148,439) 1,042,801  (3,220,097) 13,184,000 -
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19.

FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT
EC120

The balance represents the carrying value of the Group’s
interest in 80% of CATIC's interest in the net income
in relation to Project EC120 which was acquired from
CATIC in 2002. Project EC120 is a jointly-controlled
operation established in October 1992 by CATIC in co-
operation with Eurocopter S.A. and Singapore
Aerospace Ltd., both independent third parties, to
develop, manufacture and globally distribute the multi-
purpose EC120 helicopters.

CATIC's net income derived from Project EC120 is
limited to CATIC's share of income, net of all expenses,
to be derived from its interest in Project EC120 in
relation to (i) the sale and production of parts and
spares of helicopters and profits accrued to CATIC from
the sale of helicopters globally; (ii) recovery of non-
recurring costs accrued to CATIC; (iii) commission
income accrued to CATIC from the sale of helicopters
by CATIC in the PRC; and (iv) administrative income
accrued to CATIC from the operations of Project EC120.

As the investment represents a contractual right to
receive cash in the future from another enterprise, the
investment has been classified as a non-current
available-for-sale financial asset and stated at fair value,
by using discounted cash flow analysis.

During the year, having considered the future cash flow
and profit forecasts of Project EC120, the directors
made a provision for impairment of HK$3,000,000
(2004: HK$4,000,000) which was charged to the
income statement in the current year.

19.

HHECI20Z2 B EE

EREAESENR S _F{tHMm
RBAFIEZHBECI20EETZ
FUWAZB80% R 2 R REE °
HHECI1I20—EHR - AN ZF+
PHTMBRBERAREBIE=%
Eurocopter S.A.JX Singapore
Aerospace Ltd.pX 37 2 3% [A 2 18
B -ZERRFEBKEARSER
% BEREREHECI2085R 2
ZREETTH -

FMERARRBEIEBECI202 3
WA RRFMEEARBELEE
BECI120 s FTEEL 2 E(H A T8
BZzWACREIAERS) : ()VHE R
SEEARTHE  RPRREN
AIEEIKEEEAK B RT
(iU R R A B ERT 2 IERE R
BRAS (i) BE R A 48 2 B A AR B
RNIHE B # 2 P2 R R EET
BB RivVPMEEATRIE
BECI120& B 2 JEFtE B A -

HRZEAREREARES —HKEE
WHIRE Z AN - BMUZRE
ENBRARERDAHKENNKE
E YAZRRAARRSRESMN
SHZzAFEIIE-

FRN - KEREBBECI20Z K KHR
eRERBENERNR  EFERR
F A8 F BRI ZFES,000,000
Bt (ZZZ P4 ¢ 4,000,000 L)
ER B -
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19. FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT 19. B HECI202 I BB EE

EC120 (continued) (&
The cost less accumulated impairment losses of the RERMBEEZRREBEZD
financial asset is analysed as follows: Hranp
Group
rEE
HK$
BT
Cost: R1E :
At 1 January 2005 and RZEZEREF—H—ABRK
31 December 2005 —EERE+-_A=+—H 39,759,462
Accumulated impairment: Z2BERME :
At 1 January 2005 RZZEERF—H—H 6,000,000
Impairment during the year FANRE 3,000,000
At 31 December 2005 R-ZEZERF+_H=+—8H 9,000,000
Fair value: NFE
At 31 December 2005 R-ZEZERF+_H=+—8H 30,759,462

At 31 December 2004 RZZEZWEFE+_A=+—H 33,759,462
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/ 20. At HEMNKRE "R H
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS BE
Group
rEH
2005 2004
“EERF —_EEWMF
Notes HKS$ HK$
fff i BT BT
Available-for-sale investments/ RHENKES
long term investments REKE
Unlisted investments, at fair FLMIRE -
value: BRAYE :
Club debentures e 960,000 960,000
Guaranteed funds and RAES RIFRE
certificates of deposits (i) 9,106,600 16,820,478
FEA Design & Engineering FEA Design & Engineering
N.V. (“FEA Design”) N.V. (TFEA Design]) (il - -
Pimpernel Resources Pimpernel Resources
Limited (“Pimpernel”) Limited ([ Pimpernel] ) (ii) - =
10,066,600 17,780,478
Available-for-sale investments AR ENKRE
Unlisted investments, at fair ELEMEE -
value: BRAFE:
Guaranteed funds and REAES R
certificates of deposits FRE (i) 11,702,100 =

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Certain of the Group’s guaranteed funds and certificates
of deposits amounting to HK$20,808,700 (2004:
HK$14,818,100) have been pledged to banks to secure
certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note

31(a)(iii)).

The Group holds a 20% equity interest in FEA Design
and a 23.5% equity interest in Pimpernel. As the Group
does not exercise any influence over the operations of
FEA Design or Pimpernal and has no obligation to
continue financing these entities’ operations, these
interests have been classified under long term
investments. Full provision was made against the
investment costs in the prior year.

ez

(i) NEEHA T4 H{EE20,808,700
B (ZZE M4 : 14,818,100
BIL) ZRAES RIFEREDE
WTERIT  (ERAEEERET
BT R E 2 |E (M
31(a)(iii)) e

(ii) N & B 45 B FEA Design 20% %
7 » Ji# B Pimpernel 23.5% %
R o B AR K B I E S FEA
DesignzkPimpernel 2 & & 17 (£
2N REETARHEE
RERE  AEZSEEREIA
REKEIRE - AFEEHEZSE
RERAEL 2 EEAE -
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
(continued)

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale
financial assets on 1 January 2005 and have no fixed
maturity date or coupon rate.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity
investments have been estimated using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that are not supported
by observable market prices or rates. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet are reasonable, and that
they are the most appropriate values at the balance
sheet date.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in the Group’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

20 IHHENRKRE B

21.

RE (&

NEREBRBEAEFNRE - R
—ETRF A -—HERERAUH
HEMKRE - ZERELEEE
HEHIREE X -

FLEMAHHENREZRAFETD
MAGEERMERBRRMAEFTHK
MzEFRRL\EHER2THER
AR o BEE RS R %G ERM
Pt 8 2 b5t 2 FE (REREE
EEABR)RAEN  WERAHE
HEAREGZEE-

i 3E B T8

22BMT

EEREEE

Group - 2005
FEE-—2TIF

Losses available

for offset

against future

taxable profit

AT A 1E 4 85 R 3R Others Total
FERBRF B8 H At &5t
HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2005 R-_ZZERFE—H—H 6,410,862 495,527 6,906,389
Deferred tax charged to FREFMBERDR 2
the income statement i E R TR *
during the year* (2,300,000) - (2,300,000)
Gross deferred tax assets RZEERFF+-F=+—H
at 31 December 2005 ZRIERIAE ERR 4,110,862 495,527 4,606,389
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21. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 21. IELEFHIE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEE B
Group - 2005
AEEM-—BBEE

Revaluation of
property, plant
and equipment

ERfYE Others Total
B EMRE Hit |5
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2005 R-—ZEERF—HF—H 5,905,032 (311,322) 5,593,710
Deferred tax charged to FREFMBRDR 2
the income statement EER B
during the year* 496,342 - 496,342
Exchange realignment M 5 & - (5,987) (5,987)
Gross deferred tax liabilites M—ZEZRFE+-F=+—H
at 31 December 2005 ZEENIEEBRERE 6,401,374 (317,309) 6,084,065
Net deferred tax liabilities EEHEEEREE
Group
rEH
HKS$
BT
At 31 December 2005 RZETZRE+-_A=1+—H 1,477,676
= Total deferred tax charged to the income statement e BHE_ZTTRF+-_HA=+—H
during the year ended 31 December 2005 was IEFEEMNBERNGR 2 ELERIE
HK$2,796,342 (note 10). 48 % 532,796,342 T (Hf it

10) °
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Deferred tax assets
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21. EFEBLE (48)
EEREEE

Group - 2004
AEE-—TTHF

Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profit

MEHRRMMET —e2ns+-p=+-58

A R SRR Others Total
FERTE F 2 B 18 Hith CEin
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2004 RZZEZMF—H—H 8,614,500 591,889 9,206,389
Deferred tax charged to FAEFEERMEG 2
the income statement EAET I *
during the year* (2,203,638) (96,362) (2,300,000)
Gross deferred tax assets RZEENF+=ZRF=+—H
at 31 December 2004 ZERERIBE ERR 6,410,862 495,527 6,906,389
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE
Group - 2004
AEEH-—TTNF
Revaluation of
property, plant
and equipment
EXRE/ESE Others Total
B 55 0 2% 1 Hth B3
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2004 RZZEZMFE—H—H 6,840,957 (311,322) 6,529,635
Deferred tax credited to FREMBEERARZ
the income statement AT IE *
during the year* (935,925) - (935,925)
Gross deferred tax liabilites R=ZEW&+=-A=+—8
at 31 December 2004 ZEERIBEERR 5,905,032 (311,322) 5,593,710
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21. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 21. ELEBIE (&)
Net deferred tax assets EERBEEEFH
Group
r5E
HK$
BT
At 31 December 2004 R_ZEENE+_-_A=+—H 1,312,679
* Total deferred tax charged to the income statement * HE_TTNF+-_A=+—H
during the year ended 31 December 2004 was IEFE Eﬂﬂ%?ﬂ@ZLL%ﬁlﬁ
HK$1,364,075 (note 10). 48 %8 5 1,364,0757% T (K it
10) e
At 31 December 2005, the Group had tax losses arising RZEBEZERF+A=1+—H &
in Hong Kong of HK$23,491,000 (2004: EEREEREACTEERER
HK$36,633,000) that are available indefinitely for 23,491,000 T (ZZEZF M F
offsetting against future taxable profits of a subsidiary 36,633,000 7T) © Al A{EH IH IR
in which the losses arose. As the Group expects that EEZ —XMNB AR 2 RKRERD
the subsidiary will have sufficient taxable profits i Al o BN S [E TE B FZ T /B A |
generated in the future to utilise these tax losses, a £ B2 A B 40 FE 3R B m 7 2 A 7%
deferred tax asset has been created. In addition, a EHIBER - WILEERIBEEER
deferred tax liability arising from taxable temporary FETES o N REFEBEMI
difference from assets carried at fair value revalued at REEARCEEZERN G RE
the balance sheet date has also been recognised. BINERARR ©
At 31 December 2005, the Group also had tax losses RZEERF+ZA=1+—H " &
arising in Hong Kong of HK$12,486,000 (2004: SEEBARELEZHBEERR
HK$15,456,000) that are available indefinitely for 12,486,000 L (— =& M F :
offsetting against future taxable profits of the 15,456,000/ 7t) + A] FA{EK$H IR
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets BEARZARRERBER - AR
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as ZEBFHREKBERRFAHIREE M
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss- BAR MW ERREETIEE
making for some time. E e
At 31 December 2005, there was no significant R-_EZEZRF+_-_A=+—8 "I
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2004: Nil) for taxes ERAEEE TH BRI KEE A
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of Az ARELENMEN Z2HIERSE
certain of the Group’s subsidiaries or associates as the ARBEREEHRIEEE(ZZEE N
Group has no liability to additional tax should such F\) WIBERAEEEELA

amounts be remitted. SRR ETMBIRBEE -
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not have
any significant temporary differences for which deferred
tax assets/liabilities were not provided.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to
the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

PREPAYMENT AND RELATED
RECEIVABLE IN RESPECT OF AN
EXCLUSIVE DISTRIBUTORSHIP

The amount relates to a payment of US$5,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$39,000,000) (the
“Prepayment”) made by the Company and the Group
to a third party pursuant to an agreement for the
exclusive distributorship of 20 helicopter engines to be
produced and sold until 31 December 2006.

Pursuant to the agreement, a discount of US$300,000
will be made by the third party to the Group for each
of the first 20 helicopter engines sold by the Group
such that the Group will at least recover a total of
US$6,000,000 from the third party for sale under the
exclusive distributorship. Besides, the third party also
agreed that the average annualised return to the Group
on the Prepayment shall not be less than 8% per
annum or effectively US$1,200,000 in aggregate for
the three years ending 31 December 2006. An amount
of US$400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,119,995) (2004: US$400,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,120,000)) (note 5), which
represents the minimum return of 8% per annum on
the Prepayment for the year, was recorded as other
income for the year pursuant to the agreement. The
receivable in respect of exclusive distributorship of
certain helicopters engines of HK$38,219,995 as at 31
December 2005 (2004: HK$42,120,000) represented
the Prepayment of HK$39,000,000 and accumulated
accrued income of HK$6,239,995 (2004:
HK$3,120,000), less cash receipts during the year of
HK$7,020,000 (2004: Nil) received from CATIC who
was designated by the third party to receive on behalf
of the Company.

21.
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23. DEPOSIT PAID FOR A LAND USE 2

RIGHT

As at 31 December 2004, a deposit was paid by
Hangzhou Sealand for the purchase of a land use right
in the Mainland China. The related land use right,
which has a lease term of 42 years, had been used for
the construction of a generation plant during the year
and accordingly, was reclassified to prepaid land
premium (note 15) as at 31 December 2005.

TtERAEZENER

N-ZEENE+-HA=+—08
MNEBHEABA-—BERERMZ T
WEREMIN—EEE - ZE#A
Z2IEREZHEERRNLF  F
NERAREBEEESER Bt X =
ZERF+_A=+—HEHHE
BIEN LI (HE15) °

24. INVENTORIES 24. &

Group

REE
2005 2004
—EEREF —EENF
HK$ HK$
H#E T AT
Raw materials R 11,604,022 6,527,615
Sub-materials =y 1,619,070 1,620,252
13,223,092 8,147,867
Less: Provision for obsolescence o PR (1,617,727) (1,617,727)
11,605,365 6,530,140
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 25. BHEEXRR(REW
CONTRACT CUSTOMERS EFXNHE)
Group
REH
2005 2004
—ZETRF —EENF
HK$ HK$
E BT
Gross amounts due from BHBRFERR
contract customers 48 KE 72,904,015 27,587,875
Gross amounts due to REHRFFIE
contract customers 48 FH (103,165,723) (126,757,579)
(30,261,708) (99,169,704)
Contract costs incurred to date RHEESEHE
on long term construction SEBAEZTHM
contracts plus attributable FEAG & AR R T R 2
profits, less foreseeable losses &5 18 2,753,915,461 2,632,551,593
Less: Progress payments received B B R E R
and receivable i JE (2,784,177,169)  (2,731,721,297)
(30,261,708) (99,169,704)

26. ACCOUNTS AND RETENTIONS 26. EWERRRREE

RECEIVABLE
Group
KEHE
2005 2004
—EERF —EFETNF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Accounts receivable JE Wt BR 5K 140,270,687 80,107,626
Retentions receivable & W AR E & 90,461,111 100,004,849
230,731,798 180,112,475
Less: Provision for doubtful debts ¥ : REE B & (17,929,588) (16,343,495)

212,802,210

163,768,980




CATIC International Holdings Limited = B fi 2= £ if EIBR 2 R B R 2 7]

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

MBBRRME —z2s5t-a=+-5

26.

ACCOUNTS AND RETENTIONS
RECEIVABLE (continued)

6. BERARRE S (&)

An aged analysis of accounts receivable as at the NEER  BWERREZEZEEHZ
balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows: BREe oMM T :
Group
KEH
2005 2004
—EERF —EEF
HK$ HK$
T BT
Current B HA 112,643,036 70,483,661
31-60 days 31-60H 21,522,318 5,195,055
61-90 days 61-90H 1,277,929 27,991
Over 90 days 90H KA E 4,827,404 4,400,919
140,270,687 80,107,626
Less: Provision for doubtful debts & : REREE (3,983,507) (4,305,506)
136,287,180 75,802,120

Retentions receivable represent certified contract
payments in respect of works performed, for which
payments are withheld by customers for retention
purposes, and are released to the Group pursuant to
the provisions of the relevant contracts after the
completion of the projects in question. No aged analysis
of retentions receivable is presented as the amount
retained is provided for on each payment up to a
maximum amount calculated on a prescribed
percentage of the contract sum.

EUWRESIEREFRE CHER

TRAHNTIREE  LEREFH
BHZRERER BB TXEE
BMTIAEHE - ARREZIRES
REXNTRENRFE  RERZEAR
MEBIETEDL UL ES
5l W AR B & 2 BR ik 0 AT
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ACCOUNTS AND RETENTIONS
RECEIVABLE (continued)

The Group’s accounts receivable mainly represent
progress payments receivable from facade building
contracting works performed by Far East Aluminium,
the Company’s principal operating subsidiary, which is
generally engaged as a nominated subcontractor in
respect of property development projects in Hong Kong.
Far East Aluminium adopts credit policies consistent
with the trade practices prevalent in the building
industry in Hong Kong. Far East Aluminium recognises
its accounts receivable when the value of the
subcontract works is certified by the architect. Pursuant
to the trade practices, the main contractor from time
to time makes applications for payment certificates
which include the certified value of the nominated
subcontract works. Normally within 14 days of receipt
by the main contractor of the payment from the
employer against the payment certificate from the
architect, the main contractor shall pay to the
subcontractors the certified value of their subcontract
works, less amounts previously paid and retentions
attributable to the subcontract works as explained
above.

The normal credit term of accounts receivable from
the sale of electric and steam power is 60 days.

Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s accounts
receivable relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.

26.
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. B REEEEHD K

AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS REX
Group Company
r£E AAF
2005 2004 2005 2004
“EZERE —EEME g3 3 —EEME
HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Time deposits R 97,440,091 128,043,054 - =
Less: Pledged long term time & : EXARATHE K
deposits (note 31(a)(iv)) (B &#31(a)(iv) (10,000,000)  (10,000,000) - -
Pledged short term time EEARAESRER
deposits (note 31(a)(iv)) (Kt &E31(a)(iv))
(44,811,621)  (51,026,000) - -
42,628,470 67,017,054 - -
Cash and bank balances ReRBTRET 42,638,314 76,997,520 5,202,494 28,790,228
Cash and cash equivalents BekHeEE 85,266,784 144,014,574 5,202,494 28,790,228
At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances REEH "EBUARBEE

and the time deposits of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$69,989,668 (2004
HK$82,084,678). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirement
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits
approximate to their fair values.

IR & R IR1T 45 4 /369,989,668 T
(ZZ=Z P04 : 82,084,678B L) °
ARSI EHERREMER -
SR T AR 45 P B 9 b 2 A FE B 3R 445
MEEE SERNESERE @ &K
EEAFERABEREETINEL R
BITHARBLBLAEME -

RITERERES BRITFERME
AEREBNEGFE - RIAKE
MAEBSREHFR  FENF—HAE
“EASEARAREEE ST
R WIRA RS E B A R 5
B RERREFENREERTTF
RHEMERLQRFERE
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29.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of accounts and bills payable, as at

MBHRRHE -==

FE+=HA=+—H

. ENERRRRE
REER  ENEARERERE

the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is BEZBREDTUOT ¢
as follows:
Group
AEH
2005 2004
—EERF —EEF
HK$ HK$
E BT
Current Bl ER 94,738,570 51,882,761
31-60 days 31-60H 1,028,196 3,063,928
61-90 days 61-90H 198,465 114,600
Over 90 days 90H A E 2,481,959 2,308,119
98,447,190 57,369,408

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day terms.

WARRANTY PROVISION

SO 5 ORI TE R - —
#1200 1R H 3% -

RERE

Group
rEH
HK$
BT

At beginning of year F4
Provision for the year (note 6)

FABAZER

Amount utilised during the year

RNE R B (M ite)

12,368,283
435,200
(2,573,359)

At 31 December 2005 I

1 A
Jo A
[ H

- &
+ +—8

10,230,124

The Group provides warranties to its customers on
facade contracting works in accordance with terms and
conditions as stipulated in contracts, under which
defective works are rectified or replaced. The amount
of warranty provision is estimated based on the past
experience of the level of defective works and the
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised where appropriate.

REBRE DR E 2GR R MGEIER
s TRAETEFIRHERE -
Bt AREZ IR TEERE
B REBBZERNREELSE
BIRZEH TG - etz HE
EDRFBEEET AR AREE
B {F B FT



CATIC International Holdings Limited = B fi 2= £ if EIBR 2 R B R 2 7]

Notes to Financial Statements 31 pecember 2005

MBBRRME —z2s5t-a=+-5

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. HtENRER EST

A
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an Hh R RIBE TS - FHHR
average term of three months. R=1EA -
31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 31. FFRBITEXR
BORROWINGS
Group Company
X5E b NN
Effective
interest rate Maturity 2005 2004 2005 2004
BEAZE HH8H “2RIF _TTNF ZBRIF _TINF
% HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
% BT BT BT BT
Import loans - secured ~ Prime-0.5 Within one year 37,784,356 5,979,834 - -
EOER-FHER REBRME-05 or on demand
— SRR EREF
Bank loans - secured 6.24 Within one year 118,557,692 70,754,717 35,000,000 -
ROER-FHER or on demand
—FRRRERE
156,342,048 76,734,551 35,000,000 -
(@)  The Group’s banking facilities are secured by: (@) AEBEZRITEETDATI
BIEERER
(i) pledges of certain of the Group’s land (i) IR AR E B R FE
and buildings with an aggregate net 42 RE #932,825,835%
book value of approximately T(ZZEZE W& :
HK$32,825,835 (2004: HK$20,236,045) 20,236,045 70) 2 &
(note 14); T REF (BT
14)
(ii) pledges of certain of the Group's
generation plant and related structure (i HERAEEREFEE
with an aggregate net book value of 4 %8 7,595,569/8 JT
HK$7,595,569 (2004: HK$7,456,181) (ZZEZ2 WM F
(note 14); 7,456,181/ 87T) 2 &

THEBEREBR
5 (HE14)
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (continued)

(iii)

(vi)

pledges of certain of the Group's
available-for-sale investments amounting
to HK$20,808,700 (2004 :
HK$14,818,100) (note 20(i);

pledges of certain of the Group’s long
term and short term time deposits
amounting to HK$10,000,000 (2004:
HK$10,000,000) and HK$44,811,621
(2004: HK$51,026,000) (note 27),
respectively;

pledges of the Group’s investment
property with carrying value of
HK$14,900,000 (2004: Nil) (note 13);

corporate guarantees amounting to an
aggregate of HK$185,000,000 (2004:
HK$196,000,000) executed by the
Company (note 39); and

31.

FSFRRTER (F

(iii)

(vi)

HHEEEH B HK
20,808,700 L (==&
Z P04 : 14,818,100
BIL) 2B TRAIHEE
IR E (K7aE20(0))

EIRAEREEEH D
10,000,000/ 7T (=&
ZT P4 : 10,000,000
HBIT) K 44,811,621
T (ZZ2E @ F
51,026,000/ 7T) 2 &
TRERGHTESHSF
;(HtaE27)

EHRAXEERHEE
14,900,000/ 7T (=&
TN |\ ZIREY
¥ (Hax13) :

ANAAHAAHR
185,000,000 7T (—
T T @©® #F
196,000,000 7T ) 2
RNAEER (F15E39)
&
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (continued)

(vii)

the Group’s short term bank loans of
RMB76,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$73,557,692) were
guaranteed by I IBREXBR A A -
Mmoo R’ o\ H M FE R A
Al mNEMEEBR QA - MMEE
HMAERRA BETEBRASTARAD
Al MIBEBRKERMAR A Fand
TEE AR B R A A, independent
third parties (2004: short term bank loans
of RMB52,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$49,056,604) were
guaranteed by MM EBEABEBER A -
MMEHZESERAT - MMNERE M
ERZEAERAR  MIBREFXEBRA
Al and MINEEHDEER AT,
independent third parties).

Except for the secured bank loan of
RMB76,500,000 (equivalent to HK$73,557,692)
which is denominated in RMB, all other bank

borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars.

31.

stERITER (B)

(b)

(viiy AE Bz HIRT
B 7 76,500,0007C
AR® (AHBEFR
73,557,692/ 7T) 178
VEZEHIERE
EERAA - MR
HEHEFRAAF -
MINE S SEBE AR A
A mMEELEEEE
AR - BEMEIE
REERAA - HT
EEBHREHRAR
Nl KT E R AR
N B R A RREE
RZETHEF : 25
$f 17 & 5% 52,000,000
T AR (HHEFER
49,056,60478 7T) M5
VE=ZEMMEER
MAR AT - MME
HEZERAQA M
MERFHWERES
RAE - HIBERE
EERARRMME
EENEB R A AR #
EIR) o

B T B K BB 1TE R
76,500,0007T A R # (FHER
73,557,692 70) LA A R#EE 45
B B2 BRI UB T
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 31. AABRITER (&
BORROWINGS (continued)
Other interest rate information: H b F| =& H -
Group
X5E
2005 2004
Z2THE —ZTMF
Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate  Floating rate
& & F| & FERIE [E] 2 71| FEA X
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT BT
Import loans - secured - 37,784,356 - 5,979,834
EOER-HHR
Bank loans - secured 73,557,692 45,000,000 70,754,717 -
ROER-FHER
Company
YN
2005 2004
“2THE —TTMF
Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate  Floating rate
il FERIE [E] 2 1| FEH X
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT BT
Bank loans - secured - 35,000,000 = =
ROER-FHER
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the AEBRARFRE2ERZET
Company’s current borrowings approximate their fair BEEAEQNTFEMESE °

values.
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32. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases one of its motor vehicles under a

32. MEHERNRIER

AEEREABEOZHEERS
—88)RE - RIZ60ME A LA o HAE

hire purchase arrangement which is repayable by

instalments of over 60 months and is classified as a

finance lease.

At 31 December 2005, the total future minimum lease

payments under the finance lease and their present

& WHEM AL -

R-FERE+-A=+—8 &
BEBROZARKERSOER

values were as follows: IBEMT :
Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum Minimum lease lease
lease lease payments payments
payments payments BiEHES REHE
BiEHE mEHE ZEE A
Group 2005 2004 2005 2004
rEH —EEIF ZETEF —EERE —EEEE
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Amounts payable: B3R
Within one year —ER 233,808 233,808 208,857 196,090
In the second year F-F 233,808 233,808 222,456 208,857
In the third to fifth years, E=FHEF
inclusive BREERME 58,452 292,260 57,841 280,297
Total minimum finance RERERENT
lease payments ] 526,068 759,876 489,154 685,244
Future finance charges RIREHH L (36,914) (74,632)
Total net finance lease FREMEREMFEYL
payables k] 489,154 685,244
Portion classified as FIEREN B & 2 2D
current liabilities (208,857) (196,090)
Non-current portion FEmEIDH 280,297 489,154

The Group's hire purchase arrangement bears interest

at fixed rate and its carrying amount approximates to

its fair value.

AEBZHEBEEOLZHIEEE M
KEE - MEKREEREE A FER

o+

Eo
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. BR&
Company
PIN/NE|
2005 2004
—EZRF —TEMF
HK$ HK$
V- BT
Authorised: ETE
6,000,000,000 ordinary shares 6,000,000,0000% & %

of HK$0.10 each FEE0.10/ T 2 & @k 600,000,000 600,000,000

Issued and fully paid: BERTREAR

3,741,481,000 3,741,481,000/%

(2004: 3,741,481,000) (ZZ2TWE :

ordinary shares of 3,741,481,0000%) & %

HK$0.10 each EE0.108 T2 &k 374,148,100 374,148,100
A summary of the movement in the Company’s issued RATNEANEBITRA 2 Z B
share capital during the year is as follows: /(1N

Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTROHE BRTRA 1% 17 )5 {8 Bk &t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2004 RZZETMF
—R- 3,720,681,000 372,068,100 1,348,500 373,416,600
Share options exercised EREETE 20,800,000 2,080,000 624,000 2,704,000
At 31 December 2004, RZZZNE
1 January 2005 and +-—A=+—8"
31 December 2005 —ZTZThF
—H—BRk
—TETRF
+-A=+—H 3,741,481,000 374,148,100 1,972,500 376,120,600
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33.

34.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2004, the
subscription rights attaching to options in respect of
20,800,000 shares were exercised at an exercise price
of HK$0.13 per share, resulting in the issue of
20,800,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration of HK$2,704,000, represented by
increases in issued share capital and share premium of
HK$2,080,000 and HK$624,000, respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting held on 14 May 2001,
the share option scheme adopted in 1991 (the “1991
Scheme”) with a life span of 10 years was terminated
and concurrently a new share option scheme (the
“2001 Scheme"”) was adopted.

Subsequent to the adoption of the 2001 Scheme on
14 May 2001, the Stock Exchange introduced a number
of changes to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules on share
option schemes. These new rules came into effect on
1 September 2001. In compliance with the amended
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, a new share option
scheme (the “Existing Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 13
May 2003 and at the same time the 2001 Scheme was
terminated. Since the adoption of the Existing Scheme,
no options have been granted thereunder.

Major terms of the Existing Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Existing Scheme is to provide
incentive to the participants.

2. The participants of the Existing Scheme are

individuals being employees, officers or
consultants of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries including any executive or

nonexecutive directors thereof.

33.

34.

R (&

REZE-_ZZTNMF+=-_A=+—H
IEFER - FR20,800,0000% % (5
ZERERTEESRAZB T
BREITE - BB #1720,800,000
R ERAEC 108 T2k - 835
&M 1E2,704,0007% 7T © FE T
R K g 0 18 o Bl 35 Hn2,080,000
78 I} 624,000 JT °

BRESE

E-_ZT-—FRATHARTZK
RBEXREL R—ANL—FmAK
A RE T F 2 BROERT &) (19915
g E®RILE  BERK—HENE
PR #E st &I (120015181 ]) B -

20015tE8IR =T —F A A +MH
BERNE - BB EmRAIE 17
EEHBERESSIZRESIAZIE
B BT —FNA—HRBAE
Mo s EABE1TELEET
ZHRE  ARBRE_ZTE=FAA
T=ERTIRRBFAS LEM
S—IEFERERTS ([RBETE)
I [ R 4% 12001518 - BEMIAH
STEILAZR - 3 £ 3R It 5T 14 B 1A
BB -

BAFEIZEIZHREERE -

1. BAHESEMSEEZRER
S -

2. REEz228ELERRT
SEEFANBERRZEE
SRBEXERZEA  HE
FEEBTARTHRIFATE
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

3.

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Existing Scheme, the 2001 Scheme and the
1991 Scheme (collectively the “Schemes”) must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the date
of approval of the Existing Scheme. The
Company may refresh this 10% limit at any time
subject to prior approval by its shareholders in
a general meeting. The overall limit on the total
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options and yet to
be exercised under the Schemes must not exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company
at any time. No options may be granted if this
will result in such limit being exceeded. The total
number of shares available for issue under the
Existing Scheme is 367,573,100 (2004:
367,573,100) shares which represented 9.82%
(2004: 9.82%) of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted
under the Schemes in any 12-month period
immediately preceding any proposed date of
grant of option to each participant must not
exceed 1% of the share capital of the company
in issue as at the proposed grant date.

Options may be exercised at any time during a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
falling three to six months after the date of
grant.

A grant of an option must be accepted within
28 days from the date of grant together with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00.

MEHRRMMET —e2ns+-p=+-58

34. BIRERE (&)

HATERZBEREAE - 2001
& & 19915+ &l (& 1[5
2 e BEREmET
R BRE  ERTFEA
ARRRBRBEAFEEH
ZEEITHRAI0% - AQ A
AIRERFE 32 10% ER - 1
BAEBRERRBRRERSE EE%
o - BT ERIBF ST
2B ARATE A AR T 31T
RO BEEE LR - TE
B A AR B A B T
AR AN30% o fis % H BE AR 7 &
BYEBERLER - ATE
K BRE - BIFFE A
AETzZRMOBHEAB
367,573,100 (=== I
% : 367,573,1000%) - B
REZBARRBEITRA
9.82% (= & & g 4
9.82%)

EEAZRRHBRERS
Al + =& B R R 1T ERE
AERERBERE(THRD
176~ ERESHEHEARTTE) M
[%208EETREETLZ
Bipiag  TRBBEARF
REBREAMZEHTR
$1% °

BhREANRHBHRER=Z
NE AR T FABERTT
3

BREARNE L A#IE28H
MER  YESNIARE
FKIE1.008 7T °
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

7.

The exercise price of an option to subscribe for

shares granted pursuant to the Existing Scheme
shall be the highest of:

(a)

the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a business day;

the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately proceeding the
date of grant; and

the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

The Existing Scheme shall be valid and effective

for a period of 10 years commencing on 13

May 2003 and thereafter for as long as there

are outstanding options granted and accepted

pursuant thereto prior to expiration of the said

10-year period and in order to give effect to

the exercise of any such options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

34, BRESE (2)

7. RIBIRAB 5t 8P A BB X
MzBREZITEERAST
lZzmkEmE

(@ BROERLBHGER
EER)ERRBRM
BHHEXRZK®T
B

(b) EROERLBHRE
HEXARBRAE
H¥RERZFHKT
B: R

(0 ARFERMHEE -

8. BAEHEBE=-ZT=FAA
T=ZBEFTFRAER M
REdf+FRRATE R R
B R TTE R R D A]
1718 -

BERYEETREAZTERES
RERAEEREZRER -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 34. BRESE (&)

(continued)

Notwithstanding the termination of the 1991 Scheme BE 19915 8l % 20015 &) 2 1 42
and the 2001 Scheme, the relevant provisions thereof IF BREBEREARLEE RS
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary T 1 AR 1T 58 2 B8 AR B D A B UK B
to give effect to the exercise of any outstanding share Bat 8l 2 HETHE  HAIFE19915
options granted thereunder prior to their respective 21 % 20015 4 42 1E AT E 3% R
terminations. Details of share options, granted under —EERF+TZA=1T—HHERIT
the 1991 Scheme and the 2001 Scheme prior to their FrERECERMAT :

respective terminations and outstanding as at 31
December 2005, were as follows:

Number of share options
BREXAR
Outstanding
at 31 December
Outstanding Cancelled/ 2005
at 1 January 2005  Granted during Exercised during  lapsed during R-221F Exercise Exercise price
Eligible person R-221F the year the year theyear TZA=t-H Dateofgrant  period (iii) per share (iv)
RERAL -A-BHAGE ERERH EREAE  EREE/4R HATE HHAH M i)  SRAEEW
HKS
T
1991 Scheme
19915H &
Directors
EE
Yang Chunshu 8,160,000 - - (i) (8,160,000) - 28/1/2000 28/7/2000 to 0.17
(resigned as director “22% 271712005
during the year) -A-tN\B Z%%%%
E tAZ+/\H
(BRENBAES-B) E_Z%0F
tA=t+tA
Yuli 5,400,000 - - (i) (5,400,000) —  28/1/2000 28/7/2000 to 0.17
(resigned as director Z%%% 271112005
during the year) -AZtNB Z%%%f%
T tAZ1+N\H
(BERENBTES-E) EETRE
tA=t++tH
13,560,000 - - (13,560,000) -
Other employees 912,000 - - (i) (812,000 ~ 28112000 28712000 to 017
EftlEE TR 211112005
-AZtN\B Z%%%%f
tAZt/NH
EZEERNE
tA=t+tA

14,472,000 - - (14,472,000) -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 34. BREFTE (&
(continued)

Number of share options

EREHE
Outstanding
at 31 December
Outstanding Cancelled/ 2005
at 1 January 2005  Granted during Exercised during  lapsed during R-221f% Exercise Exercise price
Eligible person R-221% the year the year theyear TZA=f-H Dateofgrant period (iii) per share (iv)
RERAL -A-BHAGE FRERE ERBAE  FRiEH/ 4K HAGE HEAH M (i) SRTEE(
HKS
ET
2001 Scheme
20013 8
Directors
EE
Ji Guirong 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 25/2/2003 25/8/2003 to 0.13
8% It 2 24/812008
“R-taA Z%%=f%
NA=t3A
EIRRNE
NAZtEA
Yang Chunshu 20,000,000 - - (i) (20,000,000) - 250212003 25/8/2003 to 0.13
(resigned as director Z33=% 24/8/2008
during the year) “A-tER Z-%%:Z%f
BEE NAZTEA
(BRERBEESR) EIETNE
NA=tEA
Yu Li 20,000,000 - - (i) (20,000,000) - 250212003 25/8/2003 to 0.13
(resigned as director Z33=% 24/8/2008
during the year) “A-tRR -%%=
T NAZ+1A
(BRERBEESR) EIETNE
NAZtEA
60,000,000 - - (40,000,000) 20,000,000
Other employees 22,000,000 _ _ - 22,000,000 25/2/2003 25/8/2003 to 0.13
HibEE m—— 24/8/2008
“F=tf#R Z=%%:=
NA=t3A
EIERN\E
NAZtEA

82,000,000 - - (40,000,000) 42,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

(i) Yang Chunshu and Yu Li resigned as directors
of the Company during the year and accordingly
their share options were cancelled.

(i) These share options were lapsed after 27 July
2005.

(iii) Share options must be held for a minimum of
six months before exercise. Exercise period shall
not exceed a period of five years commencing
on the expiry of a period of not less than six
months after the date the option is accepted.

(iv)  The exercise price of the share options is subject
to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus
issues, or other similar changes in the Company'’s
share capital.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
42,000,000 share options outstanding under the
Schemes. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 42,000,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital and share premium, before issue
expenses, of HK$4,200,000 and HK$1,260,000,
respectively.

At the date of approval these financial statements, the
Company had 42,000,000 share options outstanding
under the Schemes, which represented approximately
1.1% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

34.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BBRERTE (E)

BB Rk T F R F A gHER
RAEF  AREFZBR
EEEH -

HEBRER_-_TTAFL
AZt+EtHREERM® -

VARAFAELNEAT AT
ERERAE ¢ TTEHI R R
BERWNE B MmN EA BT
BeERAFE/ZE -

BREZITEEAR K
& 3% AT BB AN A B AN 2 A
Hn AU Z B R E LR -

WEER  EERETEITARA
5 42,000,0000% B A% #E i\ K 17
o EARNAREBRAEET @ &
BITERNRZEREREBARA]
%A SN 3 17 42,000,0000% & 78 A% A%
o MRARBRGORECRETEITE
FA)#% % Bl % H0 4,200,000 T &
1,260,000/ 7T ©

RiELERBHREE R - TER
HEETE T AR R #£H42,000,0008%
BRERMARITE  AAGEBARRA
EETRHZ21.1% °
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35. RESERVES 35. &
(a) Group (a) A&KEH
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the AEERFERNEFEZ
movements therein for the current and prior mEE L EEESEH N A
years are presented in the consolidated BMKFISE 2 r A Em
statement of changes in equity on page 38 of B)RA o
the financial statements.
(b) Company (b) AAQF
Shares
premium Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
% 17 % 18 Bk AR BFEF CE
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
fit BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2004 RZZZNE
—H—H 1,348,500 5,243,300 16,094,086 22,685,886
Issue of shares BIRG 31(a) 624,000 - - 624,000
Net loss for the year AEEEREFE - - (359,486) (359,486)
At 31 December 2004 RZZZNE
and 1 January +=A=1+-8
2005 R-_ZThEF
—H—H 1,972,500 5,243,300 15,734,600 22,950,400
Net loss for the year KEEBEESR = - (6,828,069) (6,828,069)
At 31 December 2005 RZZZRE
+-A=+—H 1,972,500 5,243,300 8,906,531 16,122,331

The contributed surplus of the Company in the prior year
represents the difference between the consolidated net
asset value of Far East Aluminium (B.V.I.) Limited on 20
November 1991 when its entire issued share capital was
acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation, and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued in consideration for such acquisition. Under
the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable
to shareholders under certain circumstances.

The Company's share premium account of
HK$1,972,500 as at 31 December 2005 and 2004 may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

RABZHARBRBARNARES
BEEATHER—NANL—F+—A=
+ B B AFar East Aluminium (B.V.I.)
Limited 2 &6 2 21T AR 7N + Far East
Aluminium (B.V.L.) Limited Z 42 & &
EFEERNRTMERWENKE MR
TZROEEME ZEZRE - RERA
RE-NN—FR8EEFTA) -
RABZHARBRESE TIHERTA
HARTERE -
ARRR-_ZERAFER-_ZTENF
+=ZA=+—Bz2BHEEE
1,972,500/ 7T AT LA B AT AR 5 = 5
K °
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group capitalised
depreciation charges amounting to
HK$4,004,234 (2004: HK$3,284,766) (note 6)
and interest expense of HK$909,081 (2004:
HK$1,052,687) in long term construction

contracts (note 7).

Restricted cash and cash equivalent
balances

Certain of the Group’s time deposits are pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group, as further explained in note 31(a)(iv).

Certain of the Group’s cash and cash equivalent
balances are not freely convertible into Hong
Kong dollars (note 27).

36. ZFERTRERME

(a)

(b)

EXFBESRS

FR AEEBFTERL
4,004234B T (ZZEZ Y
4 1 3,284,766/ 7T) (Mfat6)
K F B F 909,081 7t (=
TEPIE ¢ 1,052,687 7T)
BARBEESHKA (H
#x7) e

ERHRERBEEEHEER

AREBZETEHFERE K
HFERIT  NIERAEEE
WZBTEE E—THEE
A M FE31(a)(iv) °

AREFBzETHERBESE
B4R BB EBRE T
(Htat27) -
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. KREBLOZHE

(@) As lessor (a) EEHAA
7% £ B % A A ) AR U8 7 HA R
EAME T ESTANT
RBEME -

The Group and the Company lease its investment
property under operating lease arrangement
with lease negotiated for a term of two years.

At 31 December 2005, the Group and the R—ZBFRE+_A=1—
B AEEREAQBREE

BRETZLT FIA T F S E
ZTAHHEEEEOEAHE
BHEOKERE WA S BEHN

Company had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

T
Group Company
AEE VAN
2005 2004 2005 2004
“E2IF —TTMF —ZERF —TTNF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Within one year —FR 587,760 = 587,760 -
In the second to E_FEEREA
fifth years, inclusive ~ BEEEMRF 587,760 = 587,760 =

1,175,520 = 1,175,520 =
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

37. REMNRH (&)

(continued)
(b) As lessee (b) {EBEBAA
The Group and the Company lease its office AREBRAAREEE L
premises under non-cancellable operating lease PRAIHHEEEHAORH - H
arrangements with terms ranging from one to BN F—ZEZRF2ME -
five years.
At 31 December 2005, the Group and the RZEZERAF+_A=1—
Company had total future minimum lease H - RENDF AT F BRI
payments under non-cancellable operating leases Z AR HEHKEEA - NE
falling due as follows: ERARARRFAEBEBEOR
REMHESLBHINWOT :
Group Company
x5H AAF
2005 2004 2005 2004
ZEZhE —ETNME “ZTEE —ETNE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Within one year —FR 766,090 837,619 504,850 476,133
In the second to F_EEERER
fifth years, inclusive B EERE 686,798 - - -
1,452,888 837,619 504,850 476,133
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38. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments in note
37(b) above, the Group had the following commitments
at the balance sheet date:

38. &I

B £ XM EE37(h) 2 48 & T A 1
Oh - REBREE BB AT AE :

Group
rEE
2005 2004
—BERRF —EENE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEREIE AT
Acquisition of plant and machinery W B R B 1 2R 14,332,692 14,663,962
Acquisition of an associate (note 18) W BB B & N A) (Hf7F18) - 30,975,000
14,332,692 45,638,962
Authorised, but not contracted for: EREBERTL
Establishment of a joint venture A= E-W/NC]
(note 42(a)) (KtaF42(a)) 38,461,538 -
52,794,230 45,638,962
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. XAREE
The contingent liabilities of the Group and the REER  REERAKRARZHA
Company at the balance sheet date were as follows: BEMAT
Group Company
gL | Y NG|
2005 2004 2005 2004
—2ZnF —TTMmE —ZERF —TTMmE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Corporate guarantees FIRTTAH T —
for banking facilities MELRRZ
granted to a BITEEED
subsidiary 2R A ER
(note 31(a)(vi))* (K aE31(a) Vi) * - - 185,000,000 196,000,000
Guarantees under BESHNZERN
performance bonds REEZER
for construction
contracts 58,815,035 142,051,436 - —
Guarantees for banking RRTETEE
facilities granted to HERZRITE
major suppliers EEL 2 ER 44,230,769 = - =
& As at 31 December 2005, the banking facilities 3 RZZBEZERAF+_A=+—H"
granted to the subsidiary subject to guarantees given Bt A RIE AR R R FT1E H 2 #E 4R
to the banks by the Company were utilised as follows: mER 2 BTEEERARNUTH
B
2005 2004
—EEEE —ET A
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Import loans EOEHR 37,784,356 5,979,834
Guarantees under performance BEANCBORES
bonds for construction contracts ZER 58,815,035 122,232,436

96,599,391 128,212,270
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40.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)  39. SREE (&
The securities for the banking facilities are set out in ZERITEE ZERIIN NI B R
note 31(a) to the financial statements. KM EE31@) °
The Group also has a contingent liability in respect of 7N & B I8 A 1R R A S R 17 1R 1 R 2R
possible future long service payments to employees AgEAmMEESNRBRBEMA
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, with a FAEE  ZEAARBERZZ
maximum possible amount of HK$493,000 (2004: AF+-—A=+—HZES R
HK$715,000) as at 31 December 2005, as further # /493,000 T (Z T MW :
explained in note 2.5 to the financial statements. The 715,000 7T) @ FBEHNR I K REK
contingent liability has arisen because, at the balance fizF2.5 - KA BERHREZLE
sheet date, a number of current employees have HEETLPREBEREREEZIFMBERAAN
achieved the required number of years of service to SEZRBER - MEE 2 (EEE
the Group in order to be eligible for long service FEETHEATHEEZILEBEERR
payments under the Employment Ordinance if their BEBEAEZRAKRBES - AR
employment is terminated under certain circumstances. RELEBATKAEEHAEER
A provision has not been recognised in respect of such RIREIVERNERME - FTAILER
possible payments, as it is not considered probable W 5% 5 Al Be 7B > i 2 RRIE HE R
that the situation will result in a material future outflow 1 o
of resources from the Group.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BEALTRS
(@) In addition to the transactions and balances (a) BRUEHRESEMLZRS
described elsewhere in the financial statements, REEHRIN  REBRFEAZ
the Group had the following material ETUTERBAEATR
transactions with related parties during the year: Z
2005 2004
—ZEIF —ETWE
Notes HK$ HK$
fi i B BT
Rental expenses paid to T RZHERF
a fellow subsidiary ZHRE T (i - (468,000)
Recovery of a receivable (note 5) Ut[el fE Uk 7% 78 (Bf ##5) (i) - 8,563,370
Rental income received froma  WER RS
shareholder WA (iif) 550,000 =
Interest received from W B B & A A
an associate 2 HA (iv) 62,999 -
Net income from Project EC120 REIEHEC1202 5 A (v) 3,408,211 497,909
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

On 5 November 2003, the Company entered
into a tenancy agreement with Karlane
Investment Limited (“Karlane”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CATIC, for a term of one
year commencing on 5 November 2003 at a
total monthly rental of HK$39,000 (exclusive
of rates, management fees and air-
conditioning charges). The premises were used
as the office of the Company. No formal
renewal of the tenancy agreement was made
upon the expiry of the agreement on 4
November 2004 but both parties verbally
agreed to extend the rental agreement to 31
December 2004. The monthly rentals paid
were determined with reference to open

market rentals.

During the year ended 31 December 2004, an
amount of RMB9,077,171 (equivalent to
HK$8,563,370) was received from CATIC as
settlement for the receivable from &5 & B,
an ex-shareholder of Hangzhou Sealand, a
70%-owned subsidiary of the Group. Further
details are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

During the year, the Company entered into a
tenancy agreement with CATIC (H.K.), a
deemed shareholder of the Company, to lease
the Company’s investment property to CATIC
(H.K.) for a term of one year commencing on
1 January 2005 at an annual rental of
HK$550,000 (exclusive of rates, management
fees and air-conditioning charges). The rental
was determined with reference to open market
rentals.

40- Egg*iﬁ% (/“/g

Mt

(i)

(iii)

R_ZEE=F+—AA
B AR A EAP A
RAIZEZENBRA =

EEREERAR ([
S HEHE - A
48 %8 539,000/ 7T (1
BEEM -  EBBRZE
AE)  BAHH=ZZT=
F+—FRHBEHN A
H—F ZMERER
RRAIPWAE - It AR
BeERHEMBHSE
FoRZZEEME+ —
AMB#HEHmz AL
EEABLHESR  BE
FOERESEERE
EHE—TTNFE =

A=+—8-
RBE_ZTTNF+ =
A=+—BLEERX

EREE RS /AT |
9,077,171t AR (B E
78,563,370/ 7T) © 1A
B AREER70% IR
2 B B8 2 B A M

AR EBSEHRAZ
FEUFRIE o FiBH R
SRR MIFES -

FR - ARFREE /AR
RAEARRzHP M (F
B — SR
EXRB 2 REME L
Bramx(FEE) - #
HH —_ZTTRFE—H—
BEs - REI—F - —
% M % 7% 550,000/ 7T
(TREZm BERER
ZRHE) kAL T2
ERAMSHEHESEE °
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

During the year, the Company granted loans
in aggregate of HK$5,350,000 (2004: Nil) to
Sino Gas. The loans bore interest at 2.5% over
3-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") per annum, which was either equal
to or above the costs of fund of the Company.
The loans and the related interest expenses
were fully settled during the year.

Balance represented net cash proceeds
received or receivable from CATIC generated
from Project EC120. Further details are set out
in note 19 to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group had granted a loan
of RMB3,000,000 (2004: Nil) to 3k 7 & ji 2
BEIRBHE B MR E A A], a subsidiary of Sino
Gas registered in the PRC. The loan was
interest-free and was fully repaid during the
year.

40. BEA L

Mt

(iv)

(vi)

R5 (&)

(%)

FR - KRQAHEE
5,350,000/8 7L (Z T =
DU : f&) 45 P m R aE
BRFERRIE=A
HERZEHE ([HIBORJ)
M2.5%=t8E  HERK
BERARAKE S K
Ko ZERREHEZF
BERAEEFAWE -

KR T IE B ECT1201E
s & NN e
ZHERIBFRE o #E—
518 B B 7% R R BT
F$19°

FR - RNEEBETF
2 BETA R B A BT B
A B4 = ROl R s R B
B AEREMTARQ A
3,000,000T A R# (=
TTPNF : ) o &fEXK
I R UREE @R B R E
RERYKE o

2

w
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b)

Other related party transactions include:

On 29 March 2004, Florex, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Agreement with CATIC (H.K.), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, to acquire from
CATIC (H.K.) (i) its 45% Shares in CISL, an
exclusive overseas agent of CATIC, the
Company’s ultimate holding Company, for
distribution and trading of aircraft components
and the provision of related services; and (ii) its
45% interest in the Loan, with an aggregate
sum of HK$50,000,000, to be advanced by
CATIC (H.K.) to CISL. Pursuant to the Agreement,
the aggregate consideration for the acquisition,
which was limited to a maximum of
HK$100,000,000, was to be determined on the
basis of a price-earning ratio of 6.7 times of
45% of the average audited net income of CISL
for the two years ending 31 December 2006.

Pursuant to the Agreement, a put option was
granted by CATIC (H.K.) to Florex, under which
Florex was entitled to sell back to CATIC (H.K.)
the Shares and the Loan at Florex’s absolute
discretion at any time commencing on the
completion date and up to the fifth anniversary
of the date of completion.

The Agreement was conditional upon (i) the
Loan being firstly advanced by CATIC (H.K.) to
CISL; and (ii) the approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The Agreement was lapsed during the year and
both parties were released from their respective
rights and obligation under the Agreement.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of
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the Group: il -
2005 2004
—EE2IF —TTNF
HKS HK$
BT BT
Short term employee benefits MEIEERA 7,820,567 8,909,033
Post-employment benefits EEEREH 464,280 464,280
8,284,847 9,373,313

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(i)
to (a)(vi) above also constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise
bank loans, finance leases, and cash and short term
deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as accounts receivable and accounts

payable, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review,
the Group’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s borrowings from banks during the year
will either mature within one year or are repayable on
demand and all the bank borrowings bear interest at
interest rates with reference to the HIBOR or the prime
rate. In view of the Group’s short term bank borrowings
and the fact that the prime rate in Hong Kong basically
changes in line with the HIBOR, the Group’s exposure
to the risk of changes in market interest rates is
minimal.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency exposures primarily arising
from certain sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currency,
which are mainly denominated in US dollars. In view
of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged with
the US dollar and that the Group tried to match its
assets and liabilities with the same currency, the Group'’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents and
available-for-sale financial assets, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amount of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of

bank loans and finance leases. The Group’s policy is to
minimise borrowings.
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42. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a)

On 4 January 2006, Sino-Aviation Investments,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a JV Agreement with Chengdu
Aircraft and CATIC for the establishment of a
joint venture to engage in the research and
development, design and manufacture of, and
provision of technical services for, parts and
components for commercial aircraft. According
to the JV Agreement, the total registered capital
of the joint venture will be RMB100 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$96 million), of
which 40%, 45% and 15% will be contributed
by Sino-Aviation Investments, Chengdu Aircraft
and CATIC respectively. The JV Agreement will
be effective conditional upon, (i) internal
approval obtained by each of the three parties;
and (ii) the obtaining of the relevant approvals
from the relevant PRC authorities. Further details
of the transactions are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 26 January 2006.

On 15 March 2006, Billirich, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into (i) a
placing agreement with Sino Gas and an
independent third party in relation to a
placement of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of
Sino Gas currently held by Billirich at a placing
price of HK$0.52 per share to that independent
party; and (ii) a subscription agreement with
Sino Gas in relation to a subscription of
100,000,000 new ordinary shares of Sino Gas
at a subscription price of HK$0.52 per share by
Billirich. Upon completion of the aforesaid
placement and subscription, the Group’s interests
in Sino Gas have been reduced from 26.42% to
24.03%.

On 4 April 2006, 268,500,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each were issued to an existing
shareholder for cash at a subscription price of
HK$0.115 per
consideration,

HK$30,877,500.

share for a total cash

before issue expenses, of
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43. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 43. LREF
As further explained in note 2.2 and 2.4 to the financial WM RN 2 2R 2. 4F1 FF
statements, due to the adoption of new HKFRSs during it /R F R ER A9 FT A HKFRS » 18
the current year, the accounting treatment and I BHmEANE THEE RESRD S
presentation of certain items and balances in the TREAERZINATAEEER
financial statements have been revised to comply with AFFEFAE - At - BT HERE
the new requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative FEEFDEREIUFEREER
amounts have been reclassified and restated to conform ZEINFXARGERERE °
with the current year’s presentation and accounting
treatment.

44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 44. BAISERR 2 H A
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised MBHRERER_ZEZTRENA=-T

for issue by the board of directors on 25 April 2006. hAEESSHERBKERR -





